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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

| have pleasure in presenting the financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Group principally engaged in property development and trading,
industrial water supply business, trading of securities and the
holding of other strategic investments.

Property Development

The construction work of the Company’s flagship property
development project, & #8& K&, located at the junction of
Zhongshanwu Road and Jixiang Road in Guangzhou, the PRC
achieved a good progress during the year. The pre-sale license of
this building was granted by the relevant government authorities
and the formal sales has commenced. Given the prestige location of
the building and coupled with a reasonable pricing, the Company
expects the 800 plus apartments for sale shall be absorbed by the
market in a reasonable period of time. This shall help to enhance the

bottom-line of the Group in the coming fiscal years.
Water Supply

During the year, the water supply plant of the Group in Shandong
Province, the PRC continues to provide positive contribution and a
stable income stream to the Group.
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Looking Ahead

Despite that the austerity measures implemented by the PRC
central government attacked certain speculative transactions in the
property market, the consumer demand for residential apartments
remains strong. The Group shall continue to focus its resources in
the PRC property market in the foreseeable years and shall remain
focus on driving long-term sustainable growth in the PRC. The
Group shall continue to build up its land bank in the PRC whenever
opportunities arise. The Group is confident on the contributions and
cashflows expected to be derived from its development projects and
its water supply business. The Group will monitor closely its business
strategy and make necessary refinements to cope with the emerging
business markets in the mainland China.

A Word of Gratitude

I would like to offer my sincere thanks to my fellow board members,
the management and employees for their extremely hard work,
enthusiasm, resourcefulness, and contribution to the Group in the

past year.

Dr. Yap Allan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmE D

Results and Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group's audited
consolidated loss before non-controlling interests was HK$108.6
million (2013: HK$132.2 million), which comprised mainly revenue
from water supply business of HK$26.7 million (2013: HK$20.6
million), revenue from sales of properties held for sale of HK$nil
(2013: HK$160.0 million), cost of sales of HK$13.7 million (2013:
HK$170.1 million), other income of HK$3.8 million (2013: HK$3.9
million), other gains and losses, other expenses of HK$18.8 million
(2013: HK$34.5 million), administrative expenses of HK$82.1 million
(2013: HK$73.1 million), finance costs of HK$13.1 million (2013:
HK$8.8 million), loss on fair value changes on investments held for
trading of HK$13.5 million (2013: HK$32.4 million), share of results
of associates of HK$0.2 million (2013: HK$3.7 million) and income
tax credit of HK$1.9 million (2013: tax expense of HK$1.4 million).
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Included in other gains and losses, other expenses, were
derecognition of trade and other payables of HK$20.6 million
(2013: HK$nil), impairment loss on available-for-sale investments
of HK$9.6 million (2013: HK$18.0 million), impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of HK$6.2
million and HK$3.0 million respectively (2013: HK$4.1 million, and
HK$2.1 million respectively), impairment on interest in an associate
of HK$3.0 million (2013: HK$nil) and amount paid on termination of

a project consultancy agreement of HK$12.7 million (2013: HK$nil).

The audited loss for the year attributable to the equity holders was
HK$102.0 million (2013: HK$126.7 million) and the loss per share
was HK$0.09 (2013: HK$0.11).

Segment Results

Property development and trading

During the year, the Group has focused on its flagship development
project, &4 & K&, located at Jixiang Road, Guangzhou and
accounted for as properties under development for sale, which is to
be developed into a commercial complex with serviced apartments
and a modern shopping mall. The construction work is in good
progress and the pre-sell of the serviced units has commenced after
the date of the statement of financial position.

On the other hand, there was no trading activity recorded during the
year ended 31 March 2014 while segment turnover amounted to
HK$160.0 million in 2013 came from the disposal of a property held
for sale located in Hong Kong. Segment result for the year recorded
a loss of HK$36.7 million, increased by HK$16.7 million (83.5%)
from HK$20.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmE D

Trading of Securities

Segment proceeds amounted to HK$13.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2014 while there was no trading activity during the year
ended 31 March 2013. The segment recorded a loss of HK$13.3
million (2013: HK$32.2 million) attributable mainly to the fair value
loss recognised on its listed securities which were marked down to
the market price as at date of the statement of financial position.

Water Supply

During the year under review, the Group maintained a revenue
inflow in the water supply segment. The Group will continuously
put effort in scaling up the water supply through negotiating with
existing customers and implement effective costs control measures
in this business in order to boost the profit margin.

For water supply segment, the revenue was HK$26.7 million for the
year ended 31 March 2014, increased by HK$6.1 million (29.6%)
from 2013 and segment result recorded a profit of HK$8.0 million
increased by HK$4.1 million from HK$3.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2013.
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Liquidity

Bank balances and cash as at 31 March 2014 were HK$403.2
million (31 March 2013: HK$496.7 million). As at 31 March 2014,
bank and other borrowings of the Group were approximately
HK$1,411.3 million (31 March 2013: HK$877.9 million). The
increase in borrowings was mainly attributable to bank loan drawn
in the reporting year to finance the construction of the property
development project at Jixiang Road, Guangzhou. The bank and
other borrowings of the Group as at both 31 March 2013 and 2014
bore floating interest rates.

The gearing ratio (borrowings/shareholders’ funds) at 31 March
2014 increased to 59.5% (31 March 2013: 34.7%).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2014, certain assets of the Group amounting to
HK$3,450 million (31 March 2013: HK$2,421 million) were pledged
to banks and financial institutions for loan facilities granted to the
Group.

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

The majority of the Group's business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. The
Group will consider entering into hedging contracts to eliminate
any exposures to downside risks, whenever the Group and the
concerned foreign subsidiaries think fit. At the reporting date, the
Group did not enter into any interest rate speculative and hedging

contracts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmE D

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2014, a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$75.0 million (31 March 2013: HK$75.0 million) was given by
the Group to a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to an
associate. The banking facilities of approximately HK$38.4 million
was utilised by the associate (31 March 2013: HK$42.2 million) as at
31 March 2014. The Group did not have other significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2014.

Material acquisitions and disposals

On 29 September 2010, an agreement was entered into between
Vigorous World Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, ITC Properties Holdings Group Limited, ITC Properties
Group Limited and the Company in relation to the acquisition of
50% interest in ITC Properties (China) Limited at a consideration
of HK$480 million. The principal assets of ITC Properties (China)
Limited and its subsidiaries are a parcel of land located in Yuexiu
District in Guangzhou, the People’s Republic of China. Such land is
adjacent to the property development project held by the Group.
As at 30 May 2014, the vendor has not provided its consent to
a further extension of the long stop date, being 30 May 2014.
Accordingly, the agreement lapsed and ceased to be of any effect
immediately after 30 May 2014. The deposit of HK$350 million was
refunded thereafter.
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Employees and remuneration policies

At 31 March 2014, there were approximately 105 employees (31
March 2013: 87) employed by the Group. The remuneration policies
are formulated on the basis of performance of individual employees
and the prevailing salaries’ trends in the various regions. They are
subject to be reviewed every year. The Group also provides employee
training programs, a mandatory provident fund scheme, medical

insurance and discretionary bonuses.
Outlook

The Board believes, despite the ongoing impact of the government’s
austerity measures implemented on the real estate sector since
2013, following the 18th National Congress of China, the demand
for residential flats is still considerably strong driven by firm demand
of the end users. This forms the momentum to push forward the
development and longer-term prospect of the real estate market in
the PRC.

The Group has focused its resources on the real estate sector in the
PRC since last year. The construction work of the Group's flagship
development project, # & # & K&, located at the junction of
Jixiang Road and Zhongshanwu Road in the centre of Guangzhou
was in good progress during the year. The pre-sale license of this
building was granted by the relevant government authorities and
the formal sales has commenced. This shall enhance the bottom-line
of the Group in the coming fiscal years.

The Group will continue and cautiously identifying lucrative land
investment opportunities to build up its land reserve in the PRC,
aiming at maximising the shareholders’ wealth.
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Directors Profile
EEERE

Executive Directors

Dr. YAP Allan, aged 58, joined the Company in 1995. In September
2008, Dr. Yap was elected as the Chairman of the Company. Dr.
Yap holds an Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and has over 30
years' experience in finance, investment and banking. Dr. Yap is
an alternate director of Television Broadcasts Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. Yap is the chairman
and chief executive officer of China Enterprises Limited, a company
whose shares are traded on the OTC Securities Market in the United
States of America, as well as Burcon NutraScience Corporation, a
company whose shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange in
Canada, the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany. and NASDAQ
Stock Exchange in the United States of America. Dr. Yap is the
executive chairman of Hanwell Holdings Limited and Tat Seng
Packaging Group Ltd., both of which are companies whose shares
are listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited.

Mr. HEUNG Pik Lun, Edmond, aged 52, joined the Group in
December 2010 as a director of Hanny Development (China)
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in February 2011. Mr. Heung is responsible for strategic
planning and property development business of the Group.

Mr. Heung has started developing real estate projects in China since
1992 and has maintained a strong business network. Possessing
in-depth knowledge in the South China market, Mr. Heung has
participated over a hundred real estate development projects. Prior
to entering the China property development market, Mr. Heung also
has decades of property development experience in Canada and
South East Asia.

Mr. Heung is a holder of a bachelor’s degree of Arts from Windsor
University, Canada. Mr. Heung is a member of ISCM (Institute
of Shopping Centre Management) since 2011 and in June
2013, he was also elected a professional member of RICS (The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors) as a Chartered Project
Management Surveyor. Mr. Heung is currently an independent non-
executive director of See Corporation Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. KWOK Ka Lap, Alva, aged 66, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director since July 2003. He was a marketing manager
in an international company engaging in the design of business
administration system. Mr. Kwok has been in the insurance and
investments business for over 30 years, principally in the senior
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
and Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited, both of which are companies
whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. POON Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 53, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since February 2007. Mr. Poon graduated
from the University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of
Science degree in Business Administration. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the CPA Australia. Mr. Poon is currently an independent
non-executive director of Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. SIN Chi Fai, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director since January 2008. Mr. Sin is a director and a shareholder
of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of data
storage media and computer related products in Asian countries.
He obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University). He has over
16 years of experience in banking field and 16 years’ sales and
marketing experience in information technology industries. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Rosedale Hotel
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and an independent non-executive
director of China Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares
are traded on the OTC Securities Market in the United States of
America.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Hanny Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to ensuring
and maintaining good standards of corporate governance, geared
to achieving corporate goals and enhancing the interests of
shareholders. The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
formalises the corporate governance practices of the company by
adopting its corporate governance code, and the code along with
the Bye-Laws of the Company and the terms of references of the
Board Committees, provide the corporate governance framework of
the Company. This report discloses how the Company has applied
the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Compliance with the CG Code

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, except with
deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The role of the chief executive is currently
performed by the chairman of the Company, Dr. Yap Allan. The
Board has evaluated such arrangement and considers that it will not
impair the effectiveness of the Board as well as the management of

the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
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Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation at the Company’s annual general meetings in accordance
with the Bye-Laws of the Company. As at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors of the Company (or such number
as nearest to but not less than one-third) must retire by rotation,
each of the directors of the Company is effectively appointed for a

term of approximately three years or less.
The Board

The Board currently comprises five members, including two
executive directors, Dr. Yap Allan (Chairman) and Mr. Heung Pik
Lun, Edmond and three independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr. Sin
Chi Fai. Biographical details of the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”) and the relevant relationships among them, if any, are
set out in the “Directors Profile” on pages 10 to 11 of the annual
report.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive directors
and independent non-executive directors and possesses a wide
spectrum of relevant skills and experience. One of the independent
non-executive directors has the professional accounting
qualifications as required under the Listing Rules. The Company has
received confirmation from each non-executive director about his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board

considers all of the non-executive directors to be independent.
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The Board ordinarily holds four meetings per year, and on other
occasions as and when required. Members of the Board are
advised to inform the Company Secretary if they wish to include
matters in the agenda before the relevant regular Board meeting.
All Board members are kept informed of material changes about
the businesses of the Group and have full access to the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are
followed.

Six Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2014. Individual attendances of each Board member at these Board
meetings and general meetings of the Company are shown below:

EZeEFRETERSH TaRH
MERBZBENTEFE -BEFEREBNN
REREEHATZZET BRERT
REFESERRTRAENARWE -TE
EXEeN BN ARBRB I ERE
B WA AN EBARWME FEUABRE
EERFEBEST-

REBEEZT—WOF=—A=+—HLEFE
N EFEEROTARER - TEFENX
BHEZEEFTSERZ NARAIZIREKXR
g2 ERBEREIIMT :
Board General
meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
BHE EBE8Tz BHE BETZ

Directors =) EEEERANE BRAEXRE
Executive Directors HiTEE

Dr. Yap Allan BEREE+ 6/6 1/1
Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond mEMmLAE 6/6 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIIBITEE

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva A 6/6 1/1
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B A A 6/6 1/1
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEEE A 6/6 0/1

All the Directors participated in the continuous professional
development programme of the Company which aims at enabling
the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and to perform
their duties. They are also encouraged to attend suitable trainings
at the expense of the Company. The continuous professional
development programme arranged by the Company during
2013/2014 focused on topics about corporate governance, legal and
financial affairs. Each of the Directors has provided the Company a
record of training he received during the year.
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Reading
materials/receiving
briefings and
updates/seminars Boardroom and

and e-courses other trainings

MEEN #2
BN REH
B EHRER EEEgER
Directors B= BFRE H i 3% 5
Dr. Yap Allan BEREE+ v/ v/
Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond mE fm kL v/ v/
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva CI vl v/
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & B B S A v/
Mr. Sin Chi Fai EERE L v
The Board represents shareholders of the Company in managing %ﬁﬁﬁzliﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬂﬂ%f“'

the Company's affairs with the objective of enhancing shareholders
value, and represents the highest level of authority in the
governance structure of the Company. Its principal functions are to
formulate corporate strategies and directions particularly in relation
to operating plans, corporate governance, business development,
to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group. The Board has established four committees with
specific responsibilities to manage and oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Each committee is appointed with written
terms of reference and is accountable to the full Board. Day-to-day
management of the Group’s business is delegated to the Executive
Committee. The delegation of responsibilities and authority
is reviewed regularly to ensure that the appropriate reporting
systems are in place. The Board has reserved for its decision
and consideration matters covering corporate strategy, dividend
policy, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
annual and interim results, changes of members of the Board and
its committees, and other significant operational and financial
matters. A written procedure has been agreed for Directors to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon

their request.
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The Board determines the policy for the corporate governance of
the Company, and reviews annually its effectiveness taking into
account the development of the Group’s business and the external
environment. The Board adopted a board diversity policy in June
2013 in compliance with a new code provision on board diversity
in the CG Code which came into effect on 1 September 2013. The
Nomination Committee’s role was expanded to include monitoring

the implementation of the policy.

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive are currently
performed by Dr. Yap Allan. A division of responsibilities at the
Board level has been maintained to entail a balance of power
and authority. The Board will continue to review the management
structure ensuring appropriate management development and
succession plans, taking into consideration the nature and extent of

the Group's operation.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance to indemnify its Directors and management staff against
potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging their duties.
The insurance coverage for the Directors and management staff is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Committees

The Board has established committees to assist in carrying out its
responsibilities. Four committees have been appointed, including
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee. The committees
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and report
regularly to the Board.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors, currently
Dr. Yap Allan and Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond. The Executive
Committee meets as and when required to oversee the day-to-day

management and operation of the Group’s business.

EZQEEARRILRERCHRE Y&
FRIEKY EFEEEAKEXRHK
PR ZER- N _T—=FR A &
EgEREN-ZB—=FNLA-—BERZ
(EEERTRD) FRAESEEKEZ T
ZETAMEN RMEFEKE ZTTIER
R RBEZEG/RECEAZEREER
B ERIBITIE M °

TREERTRERZACENBEREE L
EE-EFQNRBEND TEHERED
HEETEH EFeNUBRARASEES
BMHELRARRNEERE BRESE
BERRNMETE

IIF

AARIEREEREREABRHESR
ERBEAERRERR URERERETT
BEAZBMEMSIEZ BEEEXE -EFNRE
BEABZARBESGNEFETR -

EEZEE

EEFORUSESZES UHRHETH
BE-NEZERCESE BERAE
SE HHEES RAZEERERE
B NEEEREBAAREE ST

AT R 5mB38
A
TS o

#ls YEHAE

m m

\
’

’

1m0
i3

HITRE

s

WTERGHEBNITEEER BEA
EREHTRAEREE - NITEBER
AREBRTRE AEEAEEERY
ARERREE-

16 Hanny Holdings Lim@ RESEBRAR



Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The current members
of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (who
acts as chairman of the committee), Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
and Dr. Yap Allan.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration,
on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, and on the remuneration of non-executive
directors. The remuneration packages of directors are based on their
individual performances, salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee will ensure
that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration and have access to professional advice if

considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2014 and reviewed the structure and levels of remuneration
paid to executive directors and levels of fees paid to non-executive
directors, and discussed salary adjustments policies for group
employees. Individual attendance of each Remuneration Committee
member at the meeting is shown below:

e

FHEZEehMBEBUFATEER—F
WITESHEK -FTHEZEEREREETE
R E (EERESEF) AEESL
EREREEL-

FHZESRERMARRARERESTN
SAREIE A B H M 2 BUR KR - @58
TEERRREEABZFHMABIANIE
WTESZFMRNEFTSRIERRER -
BEFR2HMEFBIBURREARSR AL
BRRfixfzFe HhzBEEBEE
ARAEEEMEBPIZEABER - HE
BEEHERESNHEIMABEALITIER
BRFEAGZHB TERNAFTERS
KEXER-

FWZzE a2z _T—WUF=A=1+—
BIEFERAGE — X TEBE N TFH
TEFZHMRE LK RN T IFRTT
BER2BEKF YilwmEREES Z 5
HERR - BFHNEZEEKEHFEZEH
ZERIERESIT

Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held

Remuneration Committee Member FHEEERE CHE CETZFHNEESERAE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva E Sy 171
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 5 B B 5 A 11
Dr. Yap Allan BEREEHEL 1/1

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
on both the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The members of the
Nomination Committee are Dr. Yap Allan (who acts as chairman of
the committee), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing,
Albert.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board and identify individuals suitably qualify to
become Board members as well as nominates and recommends to

the Board candidates for filling vacancies on the Board.

Subsequent to the adoption of the board diversity policy by the
Board in June 2013, the Nomination Committee also monitors
the implementation of the policy. The policy is to ensure that the
Board members with the necessary range of knowledge and skills
embrace diversity in regional and industry experience, cultural and
educational background, age and gender.

At a meeting of the Nomination Committee held during the year
ended 31 March 2014, it assessed the independence of the non-
executive Directors and the contributions and time required from
the Directors, and reviewed the size and composition of the Board.
Individual attendance of each Nomination Committee member at

the meeting is shown below:
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Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held

Nomination Committee Member REZEERE EHE CRETZRESZEESSEINY
Dr. Yap Allan EREEL 1/1
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PEE 1/1
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B B 5 A 1/1

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
both the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's websites.
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Audit Committee

Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a)

To consider the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor, and to approve the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the auditor, and any questions of resignation

or dismissal of the auditor of the Company;

To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of the
auditor and effectiveness of the audit process and discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations;

To review annual report and accounts, half-year report before
submission to the Board;

To review the financial controls, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group and make recommendations
to the Board; and

To review the auditor’'s management letter and material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management'’s response.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive

directors. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr.

Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (who acts as chairman of the committee),
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai. All Audit Committee
members have appropriate qualifications and experience to properly

discharge its roles and responsibilities.
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review with the management and the auditor the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2013, with recommendations to the Board for
approval; to review the effectiveness of internal control system; and
to approve the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor
for the year ended 31 March 2014. Individual attendance of each
Audit Committee member at these meetings is shown below:

REBE-_T—NE=ZA=+—HILEE
N BREESRITMASHE  BEEER
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FNAA=ZFTHIERNERZREEZFT EAM
BHREx TREEBERLTFTESSF:
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KELFEZEEZ 2ERNBERETNAT

Audit Committee

meetings attended/held

Audit Committee Member ERZEERE EHE CETZERZEESEENY
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert v B 5 A 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PEE 2/2
Mr. Sin Chi Fai AR A 212

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on both

the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the amount paid to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company in respect of the
audit and non-audit services provided are as follows:

Gl A

RBE-—T-ME=A=+-RLEE.
BAD TR EY o BB & T
BRH BRREBRRBHLN 2 25
m

Amount

k-l

(HK$'000)

Type of services REER (F%&T)
Audit services EZRTE 2,813
Non-audit services IEEIZARTS 2,882
Total: A&t 5,695

Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed the
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for the period concerned.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and,
apart from the new and revised accounting policies as disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, applied
them consistently with previously financial periods. The Directors
have made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and the financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 33 to 34.
Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve the
Company’s business strategies and the Group’s business operations.
The Board has adopted an internal control policy, which has been
developed with a primary objective of providing general guidance
and recommendations on a basic framework of internal control and
risk management. The aim of the Group's internal control policy is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss rather than to eliminate risks of failure in

operational systems and achievement of the objectives of the Group.
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Management has conducted reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering material
controls in financial, operational and compliance areas, various
functions for risks management as well as physical and information
systems security. The Audit Committee has been reported twice
during the year, in conjunction with key findings identified by the
external auditor.

The Company has engaged an independent consultant to perform
an internal control system review on the payment cycle of
Guangzhou Jixiang Properties Limited and to prepare a report (the
“Internal Control Review Report”) to enable the management of
the Company to evaluate and provide reasonable assurance on the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, providing reliable financial
reporting, complying with applicable laws and regulations and,
where appropriate, carry out the recommended controls procedures
of the Internal Control Review Report. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Internal Control Review Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Nam Marian was appointed as the Company Secretary
in 2008. She is an employee of the Company and is appointed by
the Board. The Company Secretary undertakes at least 15 hours of

professional training annually to update her skills and knowledge.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company is committed to ensure on-going dialogue with
shareholders and provide shareholders with information necessary
to evaluate the performance of the Company. The Company
has maintained a website at www.hanny.com which enables
shareholders, investors and the general public to have an open
access to the information of the Company. Shareholders can
obtain full and timely information on the Company’s website and
can assess current and historical company data. The annual and
special general meetings also provide the forum for the Board to
meet directly with shareholders. The procedures for shareholders
to request the convening of a special general meeting and to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting are set out below.
Shareholders may write to the Board by addressing to the Company
Secretary at the principal office of the Company at 25/F, Paul Y.
Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, who
will forward such communication to the Board; or by sending an
email to enquiry@hanny.com providing their full name and contact
details.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company can
deposit a written request at the principal office of the Company
to require a Special General Meeting (“SGM"”) to be called by the
Company. The written request must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more of
the requisitionists. An SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Company fails to proceed to convene an SGM, the requisitionists
may themselves convene a meeting, provided that such meeting
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.
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Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company or
not less than one hundred members can deposit a written request
at the registered office of the Company to move a resolution at the
next annual general meeting. The written request must state the
notice of intended resolution and any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution, signed by the shareholders concerned, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more of the requisitionists, together with a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto. Provided
that a requisition requiring notice of a resolution is deposited at
the registered office of the Company not less than six weeks before
the meeting, it shall be the duty of the Company to circulate to
members entitled to have notice of the meeting such notice of
intended resolution and any such statement.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present to the
shareholders their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31

March 2014.
Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in property development and trading, industrial
water supply business, trading of securities and other strategic
investments.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates of the
Company are set out in notes 46 and 20 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results

Details of the results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 35 to 36.

Dividend

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK2 cents per
share for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK2 cents per
share) subject to approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the "AGM"). The proposed final dividend will be
distributed on or about 30 September 2014 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company as at the
close of business on 25 September 2014.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Properties under Development for
Sale

Details of the properties under development for sale of the Group
during the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Dr. Yap Allan (Chairman)
Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with bye-laws 87(2) and 87(3) of the Company's Bye-
laws, Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
will retire from office by rotation at the AGM and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

None of the Directors eligible for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.
Interests of Directors

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
"SFO"))
which (a) were recorded in the register required to be kept under

of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

Section 352 of the SFO, or (b) were notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of

NEEBMRBRRBFAE LBEESEEIZE
EPEEAEETYAKENAIR—FR
EATRE CEERBERIN 2BRTRIE
ZRBEH

EEzEDR
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the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange Bt 2 BERR MR AT ¢
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
% of the
Number of issued share
shares held capital of
Name Capacity (long position) the Company
HARATF
BFERAHE ERITRA
A i=g%) (##8) Ehale
Dr. Yap Allan Beneficial Owner 266,361,882 23.75%
BEREEL EmEAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the directors B EXFTBEEEIN R —HNFE=A
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short =+—H HERKATNEERESTHEA

positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had an interest in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Interests of Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2014, the persons, other than a Director, who had
notified the Company their interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERR2ES

RZZE—MF=A=1+—08 REAAQA
BEZFRBPEGRDIE336EMET 2 ER
MArTaesk  THIAL (BRERUIN EME
R FHRZE AR A AR D SoAE B A A 8
EREmIKE

% of the
Number of issued share
shares held capital of
Name Capacity (Long position) the Company
HARATF
BEERAEE BBITRA
HE BB 514 (#&) BAk
Ong Bee Lian (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Interest of 67,836,000 6.05%
controlled corporation
Ong Bee Lian (#13£1) EnlEAAN/ ZEARZERE
Regent Honour Beneficial owner/Other 67,836,000 6.05%
Investment Limited
Regent Honour E=EBAHM
Investment Limited
Onn Ping Lan (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Interest of 56,080,000 5.00%
spouse/Other
Onn Ping Lan (47:£2) EnA A BEEEi
Notes: oz
1. Ong Bee Lian is a controlling shareholder of Regent Honour Investment 1. Ong Bee Lian/&Regent Honour Investment
Limited. Limited Z 4% f% f% & -

2. Onn Ping Lan is the spouse of Ong Bee Lian.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company had
not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

2. Onn Ping Lan/&0ng Bee LianZ AL °
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Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 March 2014

(i)  the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 50.3% and 100% respectively of

the Group's total turnover,

(i) the Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 72.7% and 100% respectively of

the Group's total purchases.

So far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates or shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the five largest

customers or suppliers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2014, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities.
Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Events after the Reporting Period

Details of the significant events after the reporting period are set
out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Group Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 176.

Corporate Governance

Information on Corporate Governance Practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
12 to 25.

Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Yap Allan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED
BREKEERDIT

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanny
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 175, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AN R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2014 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2014

ERTERRRNTRERFARRE B
BREMBBERKEEN 2EZE
P& T 2 12 Fr BUR A 80 EM 2 HI I - 815
FHE B REAGFRERM BB RS W B RRK
TFHEEANBRRIM 2 B - EFFAZER
SR ZBEMEZREZARGREEER
FREECMBTHRRAM 2 NEPEE AR
AMEEBRBATBEE cE%IEF B
FECEHRANGEZE cREHRER -
ERIENBRIBESAHEAZETR
REABENRFAELZEFEFESS
B-URFESREMBHRERCERBEINT
o

o

a8
e
[3kva

EREMESZERRBEA RS LEE
WRESZEGERIRMHAER-

ERR HREMBRREREBTEWH
TENEEEA TR SEER
— A=t HAZBBIRRREE
EZERERERE YEERR
ARGl 2 RBREZEREAE -

BH-BMERLEMAT
HEEET AT

BB
—E-HWERA=1+H

34 Hanny Holdings Lim@ iREEEABR AT



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HeBEsakEMzE WS

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFEZ

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET-=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FTHER FHET
Turnover =
— gross proceeds —FriSRIB 45 7 40,636 180,620
Revenue from sales of properties HEREHEMERRA
held for sale - 160,000
Revenue from water supply business K ZEFUA 26,721 20,620
26,721 180,620
Cost of sales 85 & AR A (13,686) (170,117)
Gross profit EH 13,035 10,503
Other income Hth g A 9 3,768 3,861
Other gains and losses, other expenses £ fib U 25 & &5 18
H i B X 10 (18,776) (34,453)
Administrative expenses TR (82,083) (73,115)
Finance costs 15 & H 11 (13,123) (8,842)
Loss on fair value changes on RIEEEREZ
investments held for trading NEEEBEE (13,479) (32,444)
Share of results of associates R b N 219 3,690
Loss before income tax & BT 45 B AT 5 48 (110,439) (130,800)
Income tax credit (expense) Fristife (ZiH) 12 1,855 (1,440)
Loss for the year FAERE 13 (108,584) (132,240)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEREBEREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFF

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B i THER TR
Other comprehensive income (expense) HM2EUA (FIx)
ltem that may be reclassified HigngsHmo iz
subsequently to profit or loss: BmEE
Exchange differences arising on MEGINETSFRE £
translation of foreign operations ZEN Z5 2,771 24,434
Share of other comprehensive FE(R S N R E A
(expense) income of associates 2m|(FAX) A (5,142) 7,034
Fair value change on an available- —HAHHEREZ
for-sale investment NEEESH (26,179) (1,296)
Other comprehensive (expense) FAREMEE (FAX)
income for the year A (28,550) 30,172
Total comprehensive expense FANEHEAZRE
for the year (137,134) (102,068)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT AT EEFEARIE:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ ¥ =N (102,015) (126,720)
Non-controlling interests FE P2 IR e A (6,569) (5,520)
(108,584) (132,240)
Total comprehensive expense LMTATEGEEZERAXS
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company KRABHEE A (130,638) (96,847)
Non-controlling interests FE P2 IR e A (6,496) (5,221)
(137,134) (102,068)
Loss per share FkEE 16 HK$(0.09)i% 7T HK$(0.11)7%8 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR 3R

At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—mME=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—UE —E—=
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET F& T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e Y 17 70,132 87,208
Prepaid lease payments T8+ &~ 3 18 11,166 5,578
Intangible assets mEEE 19 23,501 28,887
Interests in associates Bt N\ IR = 20 215,001 222,806
Available-for-sale investments A HEERE 21 66,371 102,053
Deposit for acquisition of interest in an W BE — B ERER 2
investment HisA 45 350,000 350,000
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WENBARZEI& 24 - 250,000
Club debentures EHESH 6,020 6,020
Deferred tax assets EET IR A E 55 31 31
742,222 1,052,583
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERR 18 619 619
Inventories FE 252 547
Properties held for sale FIEHE M 22 96,744 79,115
Properties under development for sale  F&ZEEFYE 23 3,271,183 2,316,201
Trade and other receivables and B 5 & EH b fE I &
prepayments TR IR 25 386,432 661,349
Investments held for trading HIEEBIRE 26 89,185 42,765
Short-term loans receivable JfE U 52 HA B =X 27 - 4,416
Loans to associates HBTEENRBER 28 - 87,838
Tax recoverable Al 3R B £ H - 5,470
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIES 29 403,183 496,651
4,247,598 3,694,971
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 N £ th & {- 718 &
fEst & MR 30 131,501 255,050
Amount due to an associate JEA~T — R Bt 8 8 B 3RIE 28 - 1,437
Deposits received in advance FEWET & 36 190,497 190,259
Tax payable JE 1~ 15 18 16,907 16,594
Borrowings — due within one year BR——FAZH 37 837,846 128,859
1,176,751 592,199
NET CURRENT ASSETS nEEERE 3,070,847 3,102,772
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRBDESR
LIABILITIES 3,813,069 4,155,355
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BRI R

At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—mMEFE=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—EF ===
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
ok FH& T FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXREE
Share capital N 32 11,213 11,213
Share premium and reserves f& a8 M & 2,362,510 2,515,574
Equity attributable to owners of the RABHEE AEGERE
Company 2,373,723 2,526,787
Non-controlling interests FEFE R fE = 859,596 868,468
TOTAL EQUITY EREH 3,233,319 3,395,255
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Borrowings — due after one year BR——F &I 37 573,489 749,064
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE 33 6,261 11,036
579,750 760,100
3,813,069 4,155,355

The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 175 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30

June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Yap Allan
ExBEL
CHAIRMAN

E

EFEEeCR _ZT-NESNAZTHILER
BT EFEISFZ17SE 2B ERE

HATAEIREREE:

Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond

DE=F P
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERREZSH R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—WF=H=+—HIFFEZE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREREARS
Retained
Currency Investment profits Non-
ibuted lati luati Other  (accumulated controlling Total
surplus reserve reserve reserves losses) Total interests equity
REER
R4BH HRARER REEMRR RfbRfE (RitER) ait FERER RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET FAL TR FAL FAL TAL TET
(note a) (note b)
(Hiita) (Hiith)
At 1 April 2012 W=2--%mA-A 21 1,508,541 123,576 27,502 (258,943) (291,039) 2,709,242 697,573 3,406,815
Loss for the year FREE = = = = (126,720) (126,720) (5520 (132,240)
Other comprehensive income ~ FAEMRERA
(expense) for the year (Fx) - 24,135 (1,296) 7,034 - 29873 299 30,172
Total comprehensive income ~~ FAZERA (H3%)
(expense) for the year ek - 24135 (1,29) 7,034 (126,720) (96,847) (5,221) (102,068)
Transfer of reserves to BREBEZHER
accumulated losses - (2,903) 5,732 - (2,829) - - -
Transfer of contributed surplus ~ BARSRHZ 231 FiE
to accumulated losses (500,000) - = = 500,000 = = =
Disposal of partial interestin -~ HE—RHEARTS
a subsidiary without losing BRMABREHE
control - - - (63,182) - (63,182) 185,297 122,115
Dividend recognised as BRARAEZRE
distribution = = = B (22,426) (22,426) - (22,426)
Dividends paid to non- BRFBRERERS
controlling interests - - - - - - (9,181) (9,181)
At 31 March 2013 R=F-=%
=A=t-A 21 1,008,541 144,808 31,938 (315,091) 56,986 2,526,787 868,468 3,395,255
Loss for the year FREE = = = = (102,015) (102,015) (6,569) (108,584)
Other comprehensive income ~ FREM2EHA
(expense) for the year (R%) - 2,698 (26,179) (5,142) - (28,623) 73 (28,550)
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZERA (F%)
(expense) for the year et - 2,698 (26,179) (5,142) (102,015) (130,638) (6,496) (137,134)
Transfer of contributed surplus ~ EREHRHZ 2 ER
to accumulated losses (500,000) - - - 500,000 - - -
Dividend recognised as ERAAARLRE
distribution = = = = (22,426 (22,426) - (22,426)
Dividends paid to ERFERERRS
non-controlling interests - - - - - - (2,376) (2,376)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-m%
=A=t-H 21 508,541 147,506 5,759 (320,233) 432,545 2373723 859,596 3,233,319
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERRERBE X

For th

Notes:

(a)

40

e year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ - Z—F=A=+—HI FZ

Hrat

The contributed surplus of the Company at the end of reporting period (a)
represented:

(i) the credit arising from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company as at 20 February 1998 and 19
February 2003 to the contributed surplus account of the
Company;

(ii) the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the
shares of the Company in 1999, 2003, 2009 and 2011; and

(iii)  a balance as reduced by amounts transferred to the accumulated
losses to eliminate the deficit of the Group as at 31 January
2000, 31 January 2001, 20 March 2003, 31 March 2005, 28
March 2013 and 31 March 2014.

The other reserves of the Company at the end of reporting period (b)
mainly represented:

(i) the difference between the consideration paid for the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Best Smooth
International Limited (“Best Smooth”) and its subsidiaries and
the carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired
amounting to HK$251,561,000 in 2011;

(i)  the share of net assets value of an associate transferred from
a non-wholly owned subsidiary to another wholly owned
subsidiary upon transfer of interest in an associate between

subsidiaries in 2011;

(iii)  the difference between the carrying amount of the 41%
and 8% interests transferred and the consideration received
respectively in relation to the disposal of partial equity interests
in China Good Investments Limited (“China Good"”). Details of

these are set out in note 23; and

(iv)  the share of the currency translation reserve and investment
revaluation reserve of the associates.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #EZ =&

—EE DU S el

2014 2013
—E-MF —ET—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$’000
Bt FTHER FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before income tax B P15 %6 A 5 48 (110,439) (130,800)
Adjustments for: HTISEEL 2 A
Interest income M EHA (640) (455)
Dividend income fig S WA (189) (204)
Finance costs B E B 13,123 8,842
Loss on fair value change on ?%T”FEETQE’\WTE
investments held for trading & ) Eia 13,479 32,444
Loss on deemed disposal of partial %ET’EtHE fE B & A A
interest in an associate [z < E5 18 - 655
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZREEE - 714
Impairment loss on intangible assets BV EEZRERBE 2,960 2,141
Impairment loss on property, plant ESR | T YSE L
and equipment B EE 6,158 4,122
Impairment loss on interest in an —EBE R AR
associate B EE 3,040 =
Impairment loss on prepaid lease ENEENRZ
payments BB EE - 459
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHIHERE 2
investments WA E R 9,603 18,000
Impairment loss on other receivables Hh fE R IE 2
BB B 18 2,149 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HERBAFZ
g (1,278) =
Share of results of associates i NI E (219) (3,690)
Write off of other receivables i S5 B i FE U SR IR - 6,435
Amortisation of intangible assets A = 2,426 2,613
Depreciation of property, plant and M e RRETE
equipment 12,365 11,798
Release of prepaid lease payments FENHEENE %ﬁ”lﬁl 628 611
Gain on disposal of property, plant e s
and equipment F oz W (5) (173)
Derecognition of trade and other KRIEBREI R
payables H b fE 5 FRIR (20,579) =
Write off of property, plant and Tl S 4 5 - MBS R B
equipment - 657
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

%Aiﬁzﬁlilb%%

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & Z =&

mlEE=A 5

2014 2013
—E-MF —ET—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B &t FHET T
Operating cash flows before movements Rt &EE S &8 2
in working capital REFHSME (67,418) (45,831)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FEmRAL (Em) 302 (192)
(Increase) decrease in properties FEESHE W (3Em)
held for sale VS (27,606) 77,530
Increase in properties under HEERP LM
development for sale (593,261) (579,855)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 [ H i & I k18 2
and prepayments TEAT IR L hN (108,756) (581,757)
Increase in investments held for trading #{EE Z & 1N (59,835) (68,277)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other & 5 K £ b & {718 K&
payables and accruals JEETER CRd) 8 (102,941) 29,036
Decrease in deposits received AW ET &R >
in advance - (16,000)
Cash from operations S EREE 2R E (959,515) (1,185,346)
Income tax refunded (paid) ERE (B AEH 2,901 (2,318)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBDHRACREFH
ACTIVITIES (956,614) (1,187,664)
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2014 2013
—E-WF —E-=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt it FTHER T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Refund of deposit for acquisition of REBWEMNBRARZ
subsidiaries HE 250,000 =
Repayment from associates, net RN B OEC 86,401 1,329
Repayment of short-term loans EERWEHAER
receivable 20,956 9,750
Dividend received from an associate B U —EE 2R AR B 17,286 5,000
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary £ & —H W% NEZ
P83 35 11,000 -
Interest received Wrz 8 642 485
Dividend received Wrz B & 189 204
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE HBERZHEZ
plant and equipment Ffr 1S 318 70 520
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE HEREE
equipment (1,350) (14,384)
Additional payment for leasehold land A& £ b 2 BEIMT 5k (6,200) =
Advance of short-term loans receivable & U B HA E =X (16,540) (9,166)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HE A HEHERE 2
sale investments R - 76,800
Acquisition of assets through FRWE—EHRBA
acquisition of a subsidiary Whs & E 34 - (6,500)
Purchase of club debentures BEEMES - (2,100)
Advance to associates 4 TEEE R R EK - (1,336)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXBELEZHELSFHE 362,454 60,602
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFF

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B &t THER TR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & K
New borrowings raised (S R 504,870 807,064
Proceeds from other borrowings H & K2 Fris sA 60,161 3,849
Repayments of borrowings BEEER (27,716) (76,176)
Dividend paid EfRE (22,426) (22,426)
Interest paid EATFE (13,123) (20,540)
Dividend paid to non-controlling BRI 2 RS
interests (2,376) (9,181)
Proceeds from disposal of partial HE—HEfBARE D
interest in a subsidiary without R g B K Bl 2
losing control Ffr S 318 - 122,115
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEEXEKELEZHSFE
ACTIVITIES 499,390 804,705
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRkBRELEHEER
EQUIVALENTS PR E ] (94,770) (322,357)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EPU2HERRE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZHEHEH 496,651 818,441
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE  [EZR& 82 24
CHANGES 1,302 567
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND &£ XRZHRERRE
OF THE YEAR, represented by bank ZHEEH  BRT
balances and cash AR RRE 403,183 496,651
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFEZ

General

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September
1991 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 25th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To

Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out

in notes 46 and 20 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IS R R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFF

2.

46

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other
entities
Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

Hanny Holdings Lim@ REEBARD A

BRI REEBT BB
R EER ([FEYH

wEZER])

RAFE AEEBEREATIHE
BEFMAG([EEEMMAE])
B2 FrR] R R BB B e 2
A ([FEMHRELEA]) -

BEHUBHREEN —TTNEFE-T——F
CEHEN) BEEEG G LR
ZEERE
EHMBREEL RE-BEMBEER
E7% (BAIK) BHAE
FRMBREEN  RAUBER BATHR
F10%  BEUH HitBEga RE:
REEBENHER BE S
R A BRE%ER
£12% (BFTAX)
FAMBREEN  SGAMBHEE
F105%
BEHUBHREELN  BATH
F15
BRMBREEL  HOEREERIEER
F125
BRMBREER  ATHEHE
£13%

BAGTERF 9% REREA
(ZZ2——F&EF)

BEEGEAFTR BUMBERX
(ZZ——F&#EF)

BAGERFE RBPELARAELEL
(Z2——F&#E7T) KE
BEEHENF IR E2IEMEZAREERR
CHES)

BA (ARMBERS
REZ89)

—Z2EE205%

BRBRGEERRZ
FIBRA A



Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS
10 “Consolidated financial statements”, HKFRS 11
arrangements”,
entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) “
associates and joint ventures”,
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding transitional

guidance.

“Joint
HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other
“Separate financial
statements” Investments in

together with the amendments

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as

it deals only with separate financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFF

2.

48

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when (a) it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns. All three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control was
defined as the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Additional guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain
when an investor has control over an investee.

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 10 (i.e. 1 April 2013) as to
whether or not the Group has control over its subsidiaries and
associates in accordance with the new definition of control
and the related guidance set out in HKFRS 10. The directors
of the Company concluded that the initial application of
HKFRS 10 has no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries and associates. In
general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
with respective to the Group's interests in subsidiaries and

associates (please see Notes 46 and 20 for details).

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for, and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value
(e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment

purposes).
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2.

50

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13

includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has
not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the
31 March 2013 comparative period (please see Note 6(c) for
the 31 March 2014 disclosure). Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any
material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”. Upon
the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s
“statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as the
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income”
and the “income statement” is renamed as the “statement of
profit or loss”. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option
to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total

comprehensive income.
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2.

52

Application of New and Revised 2.

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 32
Amendments to
HKAS 36
Amendments to
HKAS 39
Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HK(IFRIC)-INT 21

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’

Recoverable amount disclosures for

FERFTR] REIERT 2 B &
MBREER ([FEMKE
wEEA]) (&

B R 518 14 K 3 2 36T RABE AT
B0 7% 1R o5 2 8

7K S5 B 4 52 1 AR B2 AR 1
AW ] RIS BB R
8

BAGERF 199 TREMNHE  EEMH

non-financial assets’

Novation of derivatives and

continuation of hedge accounting’

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 cycle?

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9

and transition disclosures’

Investment entities’

Accounting for acquisitions of

interests in joint operations®

Clarification of acceptable methods

of depreciation and amortisation®

Financial instruments’
Regulatory deferral accounts®

Levies’
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Application of New and Revised 2.

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 (tentatively).

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with limited exceptions.

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

G Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge

accounting.
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2. Application of New and Revised

54

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Application of New and Revised

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

] With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an “economic
relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

Annual Report 2013/20” FIR

FE RG] RAEIERT 2 &5
BMBREER ([FEMK
WEEA]) (&

B R G1E R R 2 35T RIS IEE]T
FBE 5 sk ()

BB TR EREI [ BT A
(%)

e A EREEERAFEIERILE
ABmzMBaENS  BEM
BiEERIERATE AP
BEEERREEMERAELR
FYEEHz2eBEINEMEE
WAZS - BRIER B 2 E A
HRAZABEEERRES ¥
EeELNE MBS Z ST #
B RltERI® - R B ABEER
RiEEmELZMBEEBR
FEEPERITISEEHORE
Bm-REFB G ERE39
5 IEERAFEIIRLET AR
B WKEBEZRAFEESS

BMEBRNEDZES -

el —REFTEFRERE T =1
BRI REFIE-AM e e
AREERZRGBUCERETE
REW  LERBASEREL DL
TABRUNAERETHREFZ
FHBIRE <R FITTH - It
Sho-RE AR EETTEENE L H
MA T#ERE % | IR BB » £ 2 BE TR
THTEEYE - BERE E6
ERRERESTEISIATIRE
BZME-

55



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IS R R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFF

2.

56

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 may
affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments on the consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has

been completed.

The directors anticipate the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value
in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
3 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group's equity therein.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with
any resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries which are not businesses

The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of acquisition. No goodwill or discount
on acquisition is recognised upon the acquisition of interest in

a subsidiary.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of business less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transaction and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group's share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies 3.
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from water supply operations is recognised when
goods are delivered; revenue from sale of properties is
recognised when the properties are delivered to the buyers, at

which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant

risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers on sale of

properties prior to this stage are included in current liabilities.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Management service income is recognised when services are

provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably).
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is included in profit or loss.
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in

the period in which they are incurred.

Hanny Holdings Lim@ REEEBRA A

BEREFHEX (&)

ERY Y EL NP,

W BB RRERB 2T EHERTY
RIBEMGE AT MEH REREAME
HEHRABHRBEESE - EE A RAFE
B ReBERFETNEDNE @
FRRHRIeE A2 R ERE
TR ZEE AR

WE BB LREBRE RN L ELAY
METREREETEEERRKERE
MR R IEER HEXAREWE
B RREEB 2 E M REKEER
(RHEMFHRBREEREEZE
BarE)Ft AR

HE

RARBENGT A BRI
[\ B2 () R SR AT A PR 2 A
BIERERA - FTAEMBELQES
TR ETHA

K EE B 5 & FH A
KERENRAR S EIRBHRER A

X - REHEEE KRB RNE
HEHRER R -



Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is

amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition,
in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to

profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity under the heading

of currency translation reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them

to the contributions.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax
as reported in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Club debentures

Club debentures are measured at cost less any impairment

|osses.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment

losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
direct cost to acquire the properties. Net realisable value is
calculated at the actual or estimated selling price less related

costs necessary to the sale.
Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are developed for future
sale in ordinary course of business are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises land and related
development costs directly attributable to the properties under
development for sale. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to professional valuations based on prevailing market
conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost

necessary to make the sale.

Hanny Holdings Lim@ IREEEBRAA

BEREFHE (&)

FEHEM R

RSN ) 2 R A o ] B B F B
T REEAE- KRR EREDE
CHEBERAREMEERE T
IR (BRI R (5 & R 5
BRAEHE

FEERTWE

EZUHBERRABEEKBRETHE
ZBERAYRIZNA R A B FEM
EZBREEAR REABEGFEER
RYREREGZ L RAREERKX
R AR RE T2 ERBITHORE
HeBEXBEMEE -

FEARRNRE AR FEMESHZ
BAEE FIBR o AR T IR hn#E 19 0%5
H-AERFERRFEZEFEE
B P B il B 52 AR AN B 46 B SH 6 X
o



Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents

financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near future; or

o on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
measurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, short-term
loans receivable, loans to associates and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-

maturity investments.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends
on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets

below).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of one to two months, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, accumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in

the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to

the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate and borrowings) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance

with the revenue recognition policy.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than

goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than

goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

Determining whether intangible assets and goodwill are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which intangible assets and goodwill
have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. The management performed an impairment
assessment on intangible assets and goodwill and impairment
loss of HK$2,960,000 and HK$nil were recognised for
intangible assets and goodwill respectively in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
(2013: HK$2,141,000 and HK$714,000 respectively). As at
31 March 2014, the carrying amount of intangible assets was
HK$23,501,000 (2013: HK$28,887,000).
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Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

Determining whether property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments are impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. The management performed an impairment assessment
on property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
and impairment loss of HK$6,158,000 and HK$nil, respectively,
was recognised in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014
(2013: HK$4,122,000 and HK$459,000, respectively). As at
31 March 2014, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments were HK$70,132,000
and HK$11,785,000, respectively (2013: HK$87,208,000 and
HK$6,197,000, respectively).

Estimated write down on properties under development for
sale and properties held for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group's properties under development for sale and properties
held for sale with reference to the current market environment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. If the actual net realisable value on properties under
development for sale is less than expected as a result of
change in market environment and/or significant variation in
the budgeted development cost, material write-down may
be resulted. As at 31 March 2014, the aggregate carrying
amount of properties under development and properties
held for sale was approximately HK$3,367,927,000 (2013:
HK$2,395,316,000).
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Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale investments

Determining whether the unlisted securities classified as
available-for-sale investments are impaired requires an
estimation of the carrying amount of the unlisted securities.
The impairment of unlisted securities classified as available-
for-sale investments as at 31 March 2014 was approximately
HK$9,603,000 (2013: HK$18,000,000) in relation to unlisted
securities during the year. The carrying amount of the
available-for-sale investments may be adjusted to reflect
the revised estimated cash flows when the Group reviews

recoverable amount of the available-for-sale investments.

Estimated impairment of deposit for acquisition of interest in
an investment

Determining whether deposits for acquisition of interest
in an investment is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverability of the deposit. The Group takes into
consideration the likelihood of recovery, specific allowance is
only made for the deposits that are unlikely to be collected.
Management reviews the recoverability of the deposit
regularly. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the carrying amount
of deposits for acquisition of interest in an investment was
HK$350,000,000.
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Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of interests in associates

Determining whether interests in associates are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts of the
associates. The recoverable amounts of the associates were
determined based on value in use calculations, with reference
to the estimated cash flows in the coming five years and cash
flows beyond five years are extrapolated by assuming growth
rate is 2% (2013: 2%). The Group recognised an impairment
loss of HK$3,040,000 (2013: HK$nil) in relation to Fortune
Well Holdings Limited (“Fortune Well”) during the year.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and

various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues, new borrowings raised and

repayment of borrowings.
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6. Financial Instruments 6. BKITH
Categories of financial instruments (a) BT E%ER
2014 2013
—E-gEF —E—=4%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
Financial assets MKEE
Fair value through profit or loss R FESERILETA B am
— Investments held for trading —REEBERE 89,185 42,765
Available-for-sale financial assets AR E T EE 66,371 102,053
Loans and receivables B R EK S E
— Trade and other receivables — 8 5 Kk E e IE 3,131 26,642
— Short-term loans receivable — UG HERE K - 4,416
— Loans to associates — B THENTER - 87,838
— Bank balances and cash —IRITEHR LIRS 403,183 496,651
406,314 615,547
Total et 561,870 760,365
Financial liabilities at REBERATERZ
amortised cost g S =R
Trade and other payables B 5 N H fth fE < ;I8 113,770 246,574
Amount due to an associate &S — B & R R RE - 1,437
Borrowings f& 1,411,335 877,923
1,525,105 1,125,934
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are set out in
note 6(a) above and details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.
() Credit risk

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and the financial

guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

3 the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;

and

3 the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as

disclosed in note 38.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

()

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks and with good reputation.

In addition, the credit risk on corporate guarantee
given to banks in respect of bank loans granted
to the Group's associate is limited because the
management will regularly review their financial
performance and reconsider the continuance of the

given guarantee regularly.

6.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

96

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

()

(1)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2013,
associates is a loan to an associate, China
Enterprises Limited (“CEL"), amounting to
HK$87,173,000, which exposed the Group to

concentration of credit risk on the counterparty.

included in loans to

The Group assessed the credit risk of the loans by
reviewing and monitoring the financial performance
of CEL. Since value in use of CEL was greater than
its carrying value, the management considered the
default risk on the receivables was not significant.
The amount was settled during the year ended 31
March 2014. Other than that, the Group has no
other significant concentration of credit risk.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk primarily relate to variable-rate short-
term loans receivable, loans to associates,
bank balances, variable-rate borrowings as set

out in notes 27, 28, 29 and 31 respectively.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group maintains variable rate borrowings.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate, the
prime lending rate arising from the Group's
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings
and People’s Bank of China benchmark
lending rate arising from the Group’'s RMB

denominated borrowings.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

98

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
short-term loans receivable and variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of the relevant asset and liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2013: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 March 2014 would increase/decrease by
HK$5,362,000 (2013: HK$3,329,000).
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Price risk on listed securities under available-
for-sale investments and investments held for

trading

The Group is primarily exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities included in available-for-sale
investments and investments held for trading.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group's equity price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity instruments
quoted in the Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks of listed securities included in
available-for-sale investments and investments
held for trading at the reporting date.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Price risk on listed securities under available-
for-sale investments and investments held for
trading (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the share prices of the respective equity
investments had been 20% (2013: 20%)
higher/lower and all other variables were held

constant, the Group's:

o loss for the year would decrease/
increase by HK$17,837,000 (2013:
HK$8,553,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments held

for trading; and

o investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$2,670,000
(2013: HK$7,906,000) for the Group as
a result of the changes in fair value of

available-for-sale investments.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its
major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in PRC is Renminbi (“RMB")

in which most of its transactions are denominated.

The Group has foreign currency balances which
expose the Group to foreign currency risks,
however, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the foreign currency risk is not significant
as the amount of foreign currency balances is not
material and therefore, no sensitivity analysis is
presented.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

102

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
the borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate at the end of reporting period.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

— —
6. BIIETA (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIEREMREREBZEREGR
(&
Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEELEE (&
Liquidity tables REBEE K
Contractual Less than
weighted 3 months 3 months Total Carrying
average or to 1-5 Over undiscounted  amount at
interest rate  on demand 1 year years 5years cash flows 31.3.2014
R-B-I%
ARME  SR=fA AEERS ZA=T-H
FHHE  SIRERR ZEAZE-F -E1% BBIF HEAE ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TEx TR TERL TR
2014 “E-ME
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3474 # %5 &
Trade and other payables o REMERFE - 113,770 - - - 113,770 113,770
Borrowings &k 7.36 121,033 805,400 537,705 168,172 1,632,310 1,411,335
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREH - 38,436 - - - 38,436 -
273,239 805,400 537,705 168,172 1,784,516 1,525,105
Contractual Less than
weighted 3 months 3 months Total Carrying
average or to 1-5 Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate on demand 1 year years 5 years cash flows 31.3.2013
RZE-=%
afimE  SR=M[EA *ERRE =ZA=T-H
THME  FREXE ZHEAZ-F —Z1% BRLF nEgE ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiET T THET FHEL FHET
2013 5%
Non-derivative financial liabilities F{7£5%&E
Trade and other payables B REMERFE - 246,574 - - - 246,574 246,574
Amount due to an associate Ef—MBEAFHE - 1,437 - - - 1,437 1,437
Borrowings &k 1.73 136,547 58,550 717,200 121,167 1,033,464 877,923
Financial guarantee contracts HBERAH - 42,223 - - - 42,23 -
426,781 58,550 717,200 121,167 1,323,698 1,125,934
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

104

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “less than 3 months or on
demand” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the
carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$31,287,000 and HK$36,235,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid within
3 months of amount HK$2,650,000 (2013:
HK$1,491,000), after 3 months but within 1 year
of amount HK$4,366,000 (2013: HK$4,534,000),
after 1 year but within 5 years of amount
HK$10,029,000 (2013: HK$12,026,000) and after
5 years of HK$19,499,000 (2013: HK$24,187,000)
after the reporting date in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

The undiscounted cash flows on financial guarantee
contracts have been categorised into time bands
based on the earliest date the bank borrowings
obtained by an associate are due for repayment in
accordance with loan repayment schedule agreed

with respective lenders.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest

rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

6.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

106

(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring

basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. MEITH (&)
(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments () BITAEATE:EZE (&)
(Continued)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are (i) A= EE N (H
measured at fair value on a recurring basis FTEZ A EE A E
nFE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured AEELOPMBEERS
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. BB RIE AT ETZ -
The following table gives information about TR BEREBEETZEM
how that fair values of these financial assets are BEERAFERECER
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) (LFEPTERA 2 (B T &
and inputs used). B A BUE) o
Significant
Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s) inputs
BERARUER
BBEE RUTEHZAYE AFEER HFERTREZGAEE HBAZE
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
—B-mE | —F-=F
=g=t-8 =ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR THEL
1) Fair value through profit or loss 89,185 42,765 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
- Investments held for trading active market
1) BATESETABR 5 ERTEMBREAE TEA
—HEEBERE
2) Available-for-sale investments 13,349 39,528 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
active market
2) AEHERE £ ERMEMREAE TEA

The Group’s financial assets that are measured at
fair value are classified as level 1 on the fair value
hierarchy for both years.

There is no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the

current year.
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7.

108

Gross Proceeds 7.

Gross proceeds comprise gross proceeds from sales of
properties, investments held for trading and provision of water
supply. An analysis of the Group’s gross proceeds for the year

is as follows:

P15 FROIR 4 58

FTISIEBERREHEME B1E
BERE RIBH KRS 2 FT1S5KIE
REEMR - NEB 2 FAMSERIBLE
BOMMT :

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Water supply oK 26,721 20,620
Sales proceeds on trading of securities BHFEBECHEMBHRIA 13,915 =
Sales of properties held for sale HEREHEME - 160,000
40,636 180,620
Segment Information 8. ZEEH

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
(i.e. the executive directors) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
the types of goods or services provided.

Segment revenue and results

The Group's reportable and operating segment are as follows:
Trading of securities - Trading of investments held

for trading

Property development  — Development and sale of
and trading properties

Water supply - Provision of water supply
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Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

8. DHEER (4

DBRBAREE (&)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results RAZ2MERKESFE D 2 RN EEIR
by reportable and operating segment. AREBZDTWAT
Property
Trading of development Water
securities and trading supply Consolidated
MERR
BHEE REE ik Re
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TET T
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-Z-IF
ZAZt+-HILEE
GROSS PROCEEDS FERRAR 13,915 - 26,721 40,636
REVENUE WA
Segment revenue AEBA - - 26,721 26,721
SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 28 (B1R) &R (13,290) (36,749) 8,017 (42,022)
Interest income FEMA 640
Unallocated corporate income AOBEEEHA 3,027
Unallocated corporate expenses AOMEEZH (38,697)
Finance costs (note) MSER (41:i2) (13,123)
Impairment loss on property, plant and mE- HEREHEL
equipment (note) WEEE (fi) (6,158)
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note) BYEEIREEE (M) (2,960)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate —FEBENRER
(note) RERRE (A1Z) (3,040)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERE 2 REERE
investments (9,603)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RERBE ARz s 1,278
Share of results of associates NG E S 219
Loss before income tax BRETEHAIER (110,439)
Annual Report 2013/20? 3R 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HI FF

8. Segment Information (Continued)

110

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

DRBAREE (&)

Property
Trading of ~ development Water
securities  and trading supply  Consolidated
MELE
EHBE REE 7K e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR AT THT
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE-_Z—=F%
ZRA=+—-RILEE
GROSS PROCEEDS FEREAH - 160,000 20,620 180,620
REVENUE A
Segment revenue SERA = 160,000 20,620 180,620
SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 28 (BE) BT (32,240) (20,030) 3,928 (48,342)
Interest income FIEHA 455
Unallocated corporate income AOEEEKRA 3,202
Unallocated corporate expenses APEAEEXH (54,872)
Finance costs (note) BB (MiZ) (8,842)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note) HEZRBEEE (H#) (714)
Impairment loss on property, plant and mE BEREEZ
equipment (note) REBRE (fi2) (4,122)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments BNEENTZRERSSE
(note) (Hizt) (459)
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note) BYEEZREEE (M) (2,141)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHHERE 2 REER
investments (18,000)
Loss on deemed disposal of partial interest in 18 {F i & — &t & A 71 257
an associate Em 2 BE (655)
Share of results of associates A NGIE S 3,690
Loss before income tax BRI AIER (130,800)
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8. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Note: The Group allocated the goodwill, certain property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, intangible assets and
certain borrowings to the segment assets and liabilities without
allocating the impairment loss on goodwill, property, plant
and equipment, prepaid lease payments, intangible assets,
impairment loss on interest in an associate and finance costs to
segment result as the chief operating decision maker did not
take into account of the impairment of such assets and finance

costs in the measurement of segment result.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment (loss) profit represents (loss) profit incurred by each
segment without allocation of interest income, unallocated
corporate income, unallocated corporate expenses, finance
costs,

impairment loss on goodwill, impairment loss on

property, plant and equipment, impairment loss on prepaid
lease payments, impairment loss on intangible assets,
impairment loss on interest in an associate, impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments, gain on disposal of a subsidiary,
loss on deemed disposal of partial interest in an associate and
share of results of associates. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker (i.e. executive directors) for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

8.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HI FF

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. ZEER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities NEEERARE
Property
Trading of development Water
securities and trading supply Consolidated
MERR
EHEE kEE U &ma

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TER TR TR TR

At 31 March 2014 R-FE—F
EA=7—0F

ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 91,130 3,714,924 137,741 3,943,795
Interests in associates kNI 215,001
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 66,371
Deposit for acquisition of interest in WE-—BREER A&

an investment 350,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRAS 359,393
Other unallocated assets EARDEEE 55,260
Consolidated assets GLRBE 4,989,820
LIABILITIES 2fE
Segment liabilities NEAE 109,186 1,519,309 4618 1,633,113
Borrowings fE 3 96,715
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHBAR 6,261
Other unallocated liabilities HEtRpPEBE 20,412
Consolidated liabilities LeRBEE 1,756,501
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. ZEER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEERABE(£)
Property
Trading of ~ development Water
securities  and trading supply  Consolidated
NEER
EHFEE REE K 7a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TEL TRT TAT

At 31 March 2013 R-F—=#=HA=1+-FH
ASSETS i3
Segment assets NEEE 54,351 3,046,044 140,727 3,241,122
Interests in associates BENRER 222,806
Available-for-sale investments A EHERE 102,053
Loans to associates BYBERAER 87,838
Deposit for acquisition of interest in an WE-—EREER T

investment 350,000
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WERBARZFTE 250,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER 2 445,628
Short-term loans receivable R E 4,416
Other unallocated assets HEAHREE 43,691
Consolidated assets REEE 4,747,554
LIABILITIES &f
Segment liabilities PEAR 46,983 1,132,506 4,956 1,184,445
Borrowings T 117,664
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEEE 11,036
Other unallocated liabilities Htt kA RAE 39,154
Consolidated liabilities RAEARE 1,352,299
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HI FF

8.

114

Segment Information (Continued) 8.
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, interests in associates, available-for-sale
investments, loans to associates, deposit for acquisition
of interest in an investment, deposit for acquisition of
subsidiaries, short-term loans receivable, club debentures,
deferred tax assets, certain other receivables and
prepayments, certain bank balances and cash and tax
recoverable; and

o liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than unallocated other payables and
accruals, amount due to an associate, certain borrowings,

tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.
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Segment Information (Continued)

8. DHER (&)

Other segment information HinniEER
Property
Trading of development Water
securities  and trading supply  Unallocated Consolidated
MERR
BHEH REE ok ROE &R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TET TET TER
For the year ended 31 March 2014 F_F-F
ZA=1—HUFE

Amounts included in the measure of ~ itEH%E (BB BARSEEE

segment (loss) profit and segment et AZ &8

assets
Additions to property, plant and REME BERR

equipment - 332 - 1,018 1,350
Release of prepaid lease payments BREERFER - - 628 - 628
Amortisation of intangible assets ERAERH - - 2,426 - 2,426
Loss on fair value changes on BEBEREZATERDER

investments held for trading 13,479 - - - 13,479
Depreciation e - 1,645 5,487 5,233 12,365
Dividend income BREHA 189 - - - 189

Annual Report 2013/20? F R 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HI FF

8. Segment Information (Continued)

116

Other segment information (Continued)

8. 7o

BER (&)

Hipn SBEHR (&)

Property
Trading of  development Water
securities  and trading supply  Unallocated  Consolidated
NEER
EFHEE REE ik RARE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET TET
For the year ended 31 March 2013 F_F—=F
ZAZ1—HUFE
Amounts included in the measure of ~ stEHHE (BB) BARSEEE
segment (loss) profit and segment et AZ &8
assets
Additions to property, plant and REME BERR
equipment - 805 426 13,153 14,384
Release of prepaid lease payments BREERRER - - 611 - 611
Amortisation of intangible assets B AERY - - 2,613 - 2,613
Written-off property, plant and W% HRERR
equipment - 657 - - 657
Loss on fair value changes on RBIEEEREZ DT EEDER
investments held for trading 32,444 - - - 32,444
Depreciation e - 1,728 5,328 4,742 11,798
Dividend income BREHA 204 - - - 204
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Segment Information (Continued)
Geographical Information

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the
location of the property for property development and trading
segment and the location of customers for other segments,
and information about its non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

8.

DRER (&)
o A R

WYRERNEEEDRIZYEMAEL

KL EM D RIRE P AE S D AR E
BREIBEPZWA  ARIZEE
FEH I 2 JERBN B EE R e 10
IS s

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
RENBEE 2B A ERBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mFE —T-=F ZE-mF —T-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TET FTET
Hong Kong BB - 160,000 587,210 601,317
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") FEARLME
([#E]) 26,721 20,620 88,610 349,182
26,721 180,620 675,820 950,499

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2014, there was two customers
(2013: one customer) who are independent third parties to
the Group and accounted for over 10% of total revenue with
revenue of HK$20,422,000 and HK$6,197,000 respectively
(2013: HK$160,000,000) related to water supply segment
(2013: property development and trading segment).
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ok

118

Other Income 9. Hfttlx A
2014 2013
—E-mF —F2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT TABIT
Interest income on TH&FIE 25 B A
— Interest on bank deposits —RITIF A B 526 285
— Interest on short-term loans — B EE XA A
receivable 114 170
640 455
Management fee income BEEBUA 1,823 1,050
Dividend income & B A 189 204
VAT refund AR 1,097 2,152
Others HAty 19 =
3,768 3,861
Hanny Holdings Lim@ IREEEBRAA



10.0ther Gains and Losses, Other 10. Eb = R &8 - B X
Expenses

2014 2013
ZE-—mF = S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Other gains and losses Bz RE B
Derecognition of trade and other RIEERE 5 R H o B
payables (note) RIE (HE) 20,579 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWHE HERZHZ
equipment & 5 173
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— RN E ARz W 1,278 -
Loss on deemed disposal of partial RAEH & — B & A R 2D
interest in an associate (note 20) w2 B8 (Hi£20) - (655)
Amount paid on termination of a project  BLAR IF — {7 T8 B B R %
consultancy agreement iS58 (12,615) =
Others EH A (4,113) (1,443)
5,134 (1,925)
Other expenses Hitfss
Impairment loss on property, plant and Mz s KRB 2 RE
equipment (note 17) Eia (Kat17) (6,158) (4,122)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mYEEZREEBR
(note 19) (KtiE19) (2,960) (2,141)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERE ZREER
investments (note 21) (Kraz21) (9,603) (18,000)
Impairment loss on interest in an —HEBE AR RS
associate (note 20) WAEEE (B7:£20) (3,040) =
Impairment loss on goodwill BB REEE - (714)
Impairment loss on other receivables Hh FE W R IE 2 R E B (2,149) =
Write off of other receivables it S5 L A E U R IR - (6,435)
Write off of property, plant and S R Y
equipment - (657)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease EREENR 2 BEREE
payments (note 18) (H1a£18) - (459)
(23,910) (32,528)
(18,776) (34,453)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HI FF

10.0ther Gains and Losses,

Expenses (Continued)

Other

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group derecognised

certain trade and other payables as the corresponding

companies have been dissolved. In the opinion of the directors,

the Group has no further obligations in respect of the trade and

other payables concerned. As such, trade and other payables

amounting to HK$20,579,000 is derecognised and recorded as

an item in other gains.

11.Finance Costs

10. Httl = R EE - Hiip
(#&)
Bt REBE-Z—NFEF=A=+—H

IEFE - AEE A BB A7

MR RS TE S REAER

RIB-EBERE AEEREH

B RHMEMNKEREE—T

E At A%20,579,00078

T2 B REMEMNFIBEHLL

LEFERR - W ABR P A B b U &= 18

H o

1. B%E A

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER T

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERZFE
— wholly repayable within five years —EARAFRBEEE 13,123 7,067
— not wholly repayable within five years —TERAFANBEEE 83,334 20,772
96,457 27,839

Less: amounts capitalised in properties B R FEERPYER
under development for sale EXR{bz &R (83,334) (18,997)
13,123 8,842

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose from specific

borrowing.
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12.Income Tax (Credit) Expense 12. FiBH (IR) T H

2014 2013
—F-OF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
Income tax (credit) expense comprises: s (ER) X HBE:
Profits tax: MG -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENFH
— Current year —AREE - 111
PRC s
— Current year —KREE 2,920 2,159
2,920 2,270
Deferred tax credit (note 33) RIETR B (A7 533) (4,775) (830)
(1,855) 1,440

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT

Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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o)

Bt 75 o AR MY 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & Z ==

12.Income Tax (Credit) Expense

122

(Continued)

o LkE =5 =

S =i

The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be reconciled

12. FREH (E%R)XH (&)

FAMSH () XHEEEBR

to the loss before income tax per the consolidated statement R A 2 TR W 2 3k B T AS A% A /S 18
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: ZEERMAT
2014 2013
—E-lEF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Loss before income tax B P15 75 Bl 5 18 (110,439) (130,800)
Tax credit at applicable tax rate of 16.5% % AR £16.5%t & 2
BIEE % (18,222) (21,582)
Tax effect of share of results of associates F’ﬂﬁﬂﬁ*#’“ GIE S -4
M E (36) (609)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax éﬁfﬁﬁﬁqﬂl)\zﬁi‘“;’a
purposes (300) (436)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for REHBAS o MG w2
tax purposes 3,767 4,324
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTBBE BB E 11,977 20,303
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 75&Jﬁ3’752§%|:%%%2|3ﬁ%
operating in other jurisdictions REAIZPRBR 2 & 959 (560)
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FRAEHR (KEe) X H (1,855) 1,440
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13.Loss for the Year 13. FRAEE

2014 2013
—E—UEF el
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss for the year has been arrived FANEETIRHER T3
at after charging: FIRBED:
Staff costs (including directors’ BEINA (BRESHSE) :
emoluments):
Salaries and other benefits Fre kAR 33,177 23,489
Retirement benefits scheme RONAE T 2] g5k
contributions 1,307 1,266
34,484 24,755
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEEE (BT A
(included in administrative expenses) THRX) 2,426 2,613
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 3,712 3,506
Cost of other inventories sold B & EMFERA 13,686 12,491
Cost of properties sold B EEK A - 157,626
Depreciation of property, M R RREBINE
plant and equipment 12,365 11,798
Release of prepaid lease payments T & R E 628 611
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14.Directors’, Chief Executive's and

Employees’ Remuneration

(a)

124

Directors’ remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 5 (2013:

5) directors were as follows:

(a) EFHM

14. EF - THAR K E S &N

ENHENTFSREST(ZF
—Z=F:5%)BAZMENT

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FE T
Yap, Allan EXE
Fees we - -
Other emoluments: HAin B 5 :
Salaries and other benefits FekEMmEF 2,400 2,400
Bonus TE4T 10,000 -
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE FIET B3R
contributions 15 15
12,415 2,415
Heung Pik Lun, Edmond M2 fm
Fees e - -
Other emoluments: H At B :
Salaries and other benefits FekEMmEF 2,000 2,000
Retirement benefits scheme BRI FIET SR
contributions 15 15
2,015 2,015
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14.Directors’, Chief Executive’s 14. E5 - THEBRESFH M

and Employees’ Remuneration (%)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (@ EFFM(E)
2014 2013
—ZE-F ===k
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva El=v)
Fees we 50 48
Other emoluments: HAin 5 :
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF - =
Retirement benefits scheme RIRE R B
contributions - =
50 48
Sin Chi Fai A
Fees W 50 63
Other emoluments: H 1t & -
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF - =
Retirement benefits scheme RARAE FIET B
contributions - -
50 63
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14.Directors’, Chief Executive’s
and Employees’ Remuneration

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a)

14. EF - THAER K EE % b
(#&)

EEHM (&)

2014 2013
—F-mF —F-g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAIT
Poon Kwok Hing, Albert v B B
Fees we 50 50
Other emoluments: Hin 5 :
Salaries and other benefits FekEMmEF - =
Retirement benefits scheme RIRE R B 3R
contributions - _
50 50
Total &&r
Directors’ fees Rk 150 161
Other emoluments: H A< -
Salaries and other benefits e kHEMmEF 4,400 4,400
Bonus TE4L 10,000 =
Retirement benefits scheme R FIET SR
contributions 30 30
14,580 4,591

Dr. Yap Allan is also performing the role of the chief

executive of the Company with nil emolument for both

years and his emoluments disclosed above include those

of services rendered by him as the chief executive.
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14.Directors’, Chief Executive’s 14. EF - THEH K & &

and Employees’ Remuneration (&
(Continued)
(b) Employees’ remuneration (b) {& B %
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals of BHE_T—HWOE=H=+—H
the Group included two directors for the year ended 31 EFEE AEERUZRHFAL
March 2014 (2013: two directors), whose emoluments BIEMZEST (T —=F MW
are included in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of BEZF) BEZMEERLEX
the remaining three individuals are as follows: (@2%] - HB=ALTZMEE
BT
2014 2013
ZE-—NmF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Salaries and other benefits Fe kEAMmEN 4,147 4,464
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAE B 5T 81 5K
contributions a1 44
4,188 4,508
Number of employees
EEAR
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L £2,000,000/% 7T 1 2
3 3
No inducement paid or payable to directors to join or Rz M EFE - I &2 R
upon joining the Group in both years and no directors EENESIRNMBEAEER 2
waived any emoluments in both years. HE TREFNEZMEFE
ZAEMREE -
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15.

128

Dividend 15. &2
2014 2013
—E-NE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Dividends recognised as FAERAED IR L
distribution during the year:
2013 final — HK2 cents —E-=ZFRHERE
(2013: 2012 final dividend — B2
HK2 cents) per share e
ZE-FREKRE
A2 L) 22,426 22,426

The final dividend of HK2 cents (2013: HK2 cents) per share in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 has been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

EFEadE_—_T—MmOF=A
=t BUEFEIRMNRERE K2
Bl (ZT—=F:8R2EM) -1
ARBRRNEERRBERS it
fE°
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16.Loss Per Share 16. BREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AKRBIHEE AEMMERERRESE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BRI TNEEETE .

following data:

2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TABIT
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR R#E A A FE(GF N EE
of the Company (102,015) (126,720)
2014 2013
—F-mEF =
‘000 ‘000
TR T B
Number of shares: R &R :
Weighted average number of TR METHEE
ordinary shares 1,121,306 1,121,306
No diluted loss per share has been presented as there were no HPAMEFEFEHERTEEELT A
potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years. A% - B E A 2 51| AR R A o
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17.Property, Plant and Equipment

130

17. I3 -z Nkl

Furniture,
Plant and  fixtures and Motor
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles Vessel Total
RE-
BT HIERRBE RERRE AE e wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FTET FTAET TRT
COST BA
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FWA—H 91,575 7,830 16,557 7,064 - 123,026
Currency realignment SNERE 949 98 67 12 - 1,126
Additions NE = = 790 3,844 9,750 14,384
Disposals HE - - - (664) = (664)
Written-off s = - (1,789) = - (1,789)
At 31 March 2013 R-FE—=%=A=1—H 92,524 7,928 15,625 10,256 9,750 136,083
Currency realignment INERE 9% 10 7 1 = 114
Additions NE = = 358 992 - 1,350
Disposals HE - - = (240 - (240)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-RFE=A=+—H 92,620 7,938 15,990 11,009 9,750 137,307
DEPRECIATION AND HERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2012 N —— “E B =g 25,262 2,685 3,238 2,859 - 34,044
Currency realignment INETHE 279 41 30 10 - 360
Provided for the year FREE 4,407 688 4,340 2,092 271 11,798
Eliminated upon disposals 6 B 4 - - - (317) - (317)
Eliminated upon written-off — #i &55F ¥ 85 - - (1,132) - - (1,132)
Impairment loss recognised ~ FRAER ZBEBE
during the years 4,122 - - - - 4,122
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=4=A=+—-A 34,070 3,414 6,476 4,644 271 48,875
Currency realignment INERE (22) (5) (16) (5) = (48)
Provided for the year FRBE 4,509 707 4,100 2,399 650 12,365
Eliminated upon disposals 5 B 3 - - - (175) - (175)
Impairment loss recognised FARRZAERE
during the year 6,158 - - - - 6,158
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—m¥=A=+—H 44,715 4,116 10,560 6,863 921 67,175
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2014 R=B-NE=A=+-H 47,905 3,822 5430 4,146 8,829 70,132
At 31 March 2013 R=Z—=f£=f=7—H 58,454 4,514 9,149 5,612 9,479 87,208
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17.Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum.

Buildings Over the period of the leases
or 2% — 5%

10% - 20%

10% — 33%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

Vessel 6.7%

The Group's buildings are situated on a land in the PRC with
medium-term leases.

During the year, the directors conducted a review on the
recoverability of cash-generating units (“CGU") of water
supply business, whose operating assets also include property,
plant and equipment (as above), intangible assets with finite
useful lives (as set out in note 19) and prepaid lease payments
(as set out in note 18). Accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$6,158,000 (2013: 4,122,000) has been recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment, which are used in

water supply business.
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FHoEREE (ERMEF19) UK
T HEMNR (FRMIFE18) < #itt
ERAREKES 2 B RE
1% RE 32 5 1B 5 186,158,000 7T ( —
= F74,122,0005# L%
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFF

17.

18.

132

Property, Plant and Equipment 17. M- B R&HE (&)
(Continued)
For impairment purpose, the calculation uses cash flow BREMS At EEERAREMRE
projections based on the most recent financial budgets Al MRS RIBRBEREERERK
approved by the management for the coming year and FiRA I GEREE  WREE
extrapolates the cash flows projection for the following 5 (ZE2—=F T )ERXEFRKRA
years with zero (2013: zero) growth rate and for the further FURBBESEREREERR —+F
20 years with zero growth rate and pre-tax discount rate of ZBREmIEA - MAARTEEIR X R18%
18% (2013:20%). Another key assumptions for the value in (ZEBE—=%F:20%) - EFREETE
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows which EZ A EERFEBEMAZMEE
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation R (BEEEHEHEEREMNE) -
is based on the unit's past performance and management'’s ZEMGFHTDIBREBERAEM 2 BERBAR
expectations for the market development. EEBEMBERCTANMERE -
Prepaid Lease Payments 18. A HE K
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands AEEZBENEENKRBIEEFRER
in the PRC held under medium-term land use rights. BhE Lt ERERAE CHE L
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHBEOMEL DT :
Non-current asset EMEBEE 11,166 5,578
Current asset mENE B 619 619
11,785 6,197

Included in the carrying amount of non-current prepaid lease
payments as at 31 March 2014 is accumulated impairment
loss of HK$459,000 (2013: HK$459,000) for the CGU of water

supply business.

R-FB-—MFE=A=+—H R
BNEEMNKZREES 2K
EBREeELEM 2 R RERE
459,000/8 7t ( —F — =% :459,000
BIL) e
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19.Intangible Assets 19. B &=

Operating
right to
Customer water supply
contracts business Total
ok
EEEW RERER HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR FHET
COST R
At 31 March 2013 and RZE—=F=A=+—HBRK
31 March 2014 —E—ME=H=+—H 3 Al72 13,395 44,867
AMORTISATION AND o ORE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FWA—H 8,943 2,283 11,226
Impairment loss recognised £ A iR 2 Rl B 5 1B
in the year 1,410 73 2,141
Charge for the year F RNk 2,098 515 2,613
At 31 March 2013 R—ZT—=F=HA=+—H 12,451 3,529 15,980
Impairment loss recognised & A HER 2 B &5 B
in the year 1,910 1,050 2,960
Charge for the year F AR 1,951 475 2,426
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZE-—MFE=A=+—H 16,312 5,054 21,366
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 March 2014 R=-ZE-HNE=ZA=+—H 15,160 8,341 23,501
At 31 March 2013 RZE-—=F=A=+—H 19,021 9,866 28,887
The above intangible assets were purchased as part of the B EETRBE_STN\F=
acquisition of Regrowth Resources Limited (water supply A=+—BLEFEABA ERWE
business) during the year ended 31 March 2008. FHEBRBRAR (HKERE) 2—
5 e
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HIFF

20.

19.Intangible Assets (Continued) 19. B & E (&)
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recognised RBE_Z-—MNF=A=+—HILF
an impairment loss of HK$2,960,000 (2013: HK$2,141,000) E-ASBEWEHEKER (25
in relation to the customer contracts and operating right AHKERRESEEBNU)MEELEZ
included in intangible assets arising on acquisition of water BEREEHRKEEN (BEFAREE
supply business, which is included in the CGU of water supply 2= ) MR B & 152,960,000/ 7T (=
business. T—=%:2,141,000% )
The above intangible assets have finite lives and are amortised TEREEZEREHER KT
on a straight-line basis over the following periods: PIEAFR I E AR B 5
Customers contracts 10 — 15 years XEFEH 10— 154
Operating right to water supply business 26 years GYNESE S P 264
Interests in Associates 20. Bt E N A=
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Cost of investment in RTHEEREIRE 2
associates which are: BXAS
- listed —Fm 168,742 168,742
— unlisted (note) —JE T (M) 41,960 45,743
Share of post-acquisition profit and FEAG W 1205 7 &
other comprehensive income, B2 EBA -
net of dividends received B R B 4,299 8,321
215,001 222,806

Note: Included in the cost of investment in associates was goodwill of
HK$24,268,000 (2013: HK$27,308,000) arising on acquisition of

an associate.

134

Bt BEE R RIRE Z KA EEE K
B-HBEARMELEZAE
24,268,000 L (ZE — =4
27,308,000/ 7T ) °
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20.Interests in Associates (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$3,040,000 (2013: HK$nil) in relation

to goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate.

Details of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March 2013

and 2014 are as follows:

Place of

20. Bt N\ B fE

REE-F—

= (&

ME=A=1t—HIF

B RS ER A BE R E A Em
B 2 T B W R R (5 5 183,040,000

BT (ZE—

AREBNR-_ZT—

%

—

EEER ==
B=+—HBz=x

:E i g/%ﬁ) <

ME=

EHE N RIFEIBA

incorporation/ Place of Proportion of equity
Name of associate establishment operation interest held by the Group  Principal activities
BERARER EE AR LR 3L 3t B EEBE AEEERRELS TEXER
2014 2013
ZE-MEF —E—=t
% %
Fortune Well British Virgin Islands Hong Kong and PRC 26.09 26.09 Manufacturing and trading
("BVI") AR of garments products
RERLES MREERBEBEY
(RBREXES])
China Enterprises Limited Bermuda Hong Kong and PRC 28.95 28.95 Investment holding
("CEL") BRE BERTE REZR

Annual Report 2013/20” FIR
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20.
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Bt 75 o AR MY 5

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Fortune Well's subsidiaries operate in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. During the year ended 31 March 2013, due to the
issue of new shares by Fortune Well to two other investors, the
proportion of equity interest held by the Group was diluted
from 30% to 26.09%. A loss on deemed disposal of partial

interest in an associate of HK$655,000 was resulted.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, an impairment loss of
HK$3,040,000 (2013: HK$nil) has been recognised in relation
to Fortune Well as the recoverable amount is lower than

carrying amount of Fortune Well.

CEL's subsidiaries operate in both Hong Kong and the PRC and
its shares are traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board
("OTC Board”) in the United States of America. The principal
activities of CEL are investment holding. The financial year end
date of CEL is 31 December. The Group's share of net assets
and interests of CEL at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 is
calculated based on the net assets of CEL as at 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2013 respectively, after adjusting for
any material transactions up to 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the market value of CEL held by the
Group is approximately HK$6,683,000 (2013: HK$7,737,000)
based on the quoted price in the OTC Board while the Group's
share of the carrying amount of CEL is HK$180,913,000 (2013:
HK$179,877,000).

Hanny Holdings Lim@ REEEBRA A

mlEE=A 5

20. R E N R Em (4F)

Fortune WellZiiB AR R E B K&
PFRLEE REBEE_T—=F=A
=+—HBLIEFE  BKFortune Well
SAMEREERTHR HAE
B cRELNB30%EEE
26.09% c At AEEFFRMED
E—HBERAHBrHER ZEBIE
655,000/ JT ©

REBEEZT—NF=A=+—HLF
E - B A Fortune WellZ 7] Ug B & 58
KR EREE - Atk 2 BtFortune Well
T 3208 B /&5 183,040,000/ 70 (= &

—Z=F:FERL) -

CELZMIBRARARNEERPELSE
ﬁﬂxf’ﬁ&?%liﬁ%ﬁé% ZER ([

INZGEEIR])EE - CELCEE
AR EER  CELZBTBEE# IE
HBA+Z-ZA=1+—H -AKEEG
CELR=ZZE—=F=HA=+—8Bk=
%E—EEZH:—T——EIZ%?F?%TE&
am o RBEBECELR =T —=4F
‘f’:ﬁ]:‘f’_El&: T—=F+-_A
ST —BZEEFE KHEE_-ZT
—Eﬁjﬂ:—i——ﬁ)&_?—ﬂiz

=T —HZERMERRZETHE

= Povad
Téa Hoe

R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—8 " &HH
RGEBRCBREFE  XEERE
2 CELT{E 4] 46,683,0008 7T (- &
—=%1:7,737,0008 ) c MAEE
&1 2 CELBR M B Bl &£180,913,000
BT (ZE—=%41:179,877,000%8
JT) °



20.Interests in Associates (Continued)

The above tables list the associates of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.
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20.Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. & ATl (&)

Summarised financial information of material associates EABERNRZHBERRE (£)
(Continued)
(a) Fortune Well (@) Fortune Well
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
=R=+-—H = A= nml=
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets MENE E 116,355 184,074
Non-current assets IERBEE 11,379 12,248
Current liabilities mEAE (90,096) (136,745)
2014 2013
—F-mEF —T=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT THT
Revenue A 229,147 277,619
(Loss) profit for the year FA (EE) & F (21,940) 22,817
Other comprehensive income F A HE 2 E IR A
for the year - 20,000
Total comprehensive (expense) FAZE(AX) WALE
income for the year (21,940) 42,817
Dividend received from the FRE W ERRIIRE
associate during the year - 22,200
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20.Interests in Associates (Continued)

20. BE QA ER

(%)

Summarised financial information of material associates BABERNTCHBERME (£)

(Continued)

(a)  Fortune Well (Continued) (a) Fortune Well (4)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial P BEERBREERANEGRS B
information to the carrying amount of the interest in BmERBRE S QA=K
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial HIEZ HiR:
statements:

31.03.2014 31.03.2013
—E-MmF —T-=fF
=BA=+-—H B =" H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHER T
Net assets of Fortune Well Fortune Wellz & & & 37,638 59,577
Proportion of the Group's 7855 @ A Fortune Wellz
ownership interest in Fortune Well % & # # 25 Lt I 26.09% 26.09%
Goodwill Bl 24,268 27,308
Carrying amount of the Group's 7N & E M Fortune Well#Ez 2
interest in Fortune Well BREE 34,088 42,852
Annual Report 2013/20? 3R 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IS R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HI FF

20.Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. Bt& AT (&)

Summarised financial information of material associates BEABERNRZHBERRE (£)
(Continued)
(b) CEL (b) CEL
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
—ET—=4F ==
+tZA=+—HB +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FAT
Current assets MENE E 630,904 718,086
Non-current assets EREBEE 186,012 177,637
Current liabilities mEN A& (66,010) (148,499)
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE (81,083) (80,983)
1.1.2013 to 1.1.2012 to
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
—ET—= —E—=F
—A—AZ% —A—RZ
—FT—= —E—=F
+—A=+—H +=-ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T THT
Revenue A - -
Profit (loss) for the year FRR M (EE) 20,779 (7,805)
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMEE (FAX)BA
income for the year (17,763) 6,272
Total comprehensive income FAZEBA (FX)BRE
(expense) for the year 3,016 (1,533)
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20.Interests in Associates (Continued) 20. Bt& ATIHEZR (&)

Summarised financial information of material associates BARBERNTCHBERE (£)
(Continued)
(b) CEL (Continued) (b) CEL(#&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial F B ER B ZER NGRS M
information to the carrying amount of the interest in BmMABRE S QA ERR
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial HEZ HiR:
statements:
3. 7122013 31.12.2012
—T—=F —EB—C—fF
gt = ERE S B = —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHEIT
Net assets of CEL CELZ EEFE 669,823 666,241
Proportion of the Group's ownership 7% B R CELZ i H #
interest in CEL 1z L ) 28.95% 28.95%
Other adjustments H A& (13,000) (13,000)
Carrying amount of the Group's REBERCELER 2
interest in CEL FREE 180,913 179,877
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20.Interests in Associates (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material

kR 5

20. BrE N A iEm (&)

BRI TEAZHEAT 2 HEER

2014 2013

—E-ImF —FT==%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER T

The Group's share of loss NEEELEE (72) (3)
Aggregate carrying amount REBRILEH S AR #E=

of the Group's interests Z AR A
in these associates - 77

AEEDRILEREAE THEQR

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses
of certain associates. The amounts of unrecognised share of
those associates, extracted from the relevant audited financial

ZEE - UTREIEZERERRLZ
FARRFABERINE HEEEMA

statements of associates, both for the year and cumulatively, RS QR BRI WK
are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-0mF —T—=%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Accumulated unrecognised share of FEAGE & AR 2 BET
losses of associates RIEREE (1,571) (1,472)
Unrecognised share of losses of 1B E R R ZFE A
associates for the year RIEREE (99) (96)
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21.Available-for-Sale Investments 21. A HHERE

2014 2013
—E-mEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH T
Listed investments: EmiRE:

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LM ZBRAEFS 13,349 39,528

Unlisted securities: ELEMES:
— Equity securities (note) —RARE S (K1) 53,022 62,525
66,371 102,053
Note: The unlisted equity securities represent an investee engaged in Wiat: ELTRABLHEBEBRIFEN
holding of properties interest located in the PRC. The unlisted RAAB 2z iEm 2 HIRET - &
equity securities are measured at cost less impairment at the REBAFEMFTEERE XN M
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable RAREZRRF/IFETRAE 5
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the AT EEEREMETE - REH
Company are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be WEARBER AR B ESEZSH
measured reliably. An impairment loss of HK$9,603,000 (2013: HFoHRUEEEERETTET
HK$18,000,000) was recognised in profit or loss during the HFWEHREKRES  WAEEFAE
year as there is objective evidence that the cost of investments 7 18 7 1 329,603,000/ 7T (= &
cannot be fully recoverable. — =4 : 18,000,000 7T ) Z R &

B8 -
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22.Properties Held for Sale 22. FHEHEY X

HK$'000

TABIT

At 1 April 2012 RN-ZT——&#mA—H 230,235
Additions NE 6,506
Disposals i & (157,626)

At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=ZA=+—H 79,115
Additions NE 27,606
Disposals i =5 (9,977)

At 31 March 2014 RZE—MWMFE=RA=+—H 96,744

During the year 31 March 2013, the Group completed the
disposal of a property, at a consideration of HK$160,000,000,
whilst properties held for sale of HK$6,506,000 was acquired.

For the disposal of the property with total consideration of
HK$160,000,000, HK$80,096,000 was directly deducted from
the consideration and repaid to a bank for loan repayment
without going through bank account of the Group.

During the year 31 March 2014, the Group has performed

leasehold refurbishment on a property with the consideration
for HK$27,606,000.
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23.Properties Under Development for

Sale

The properties under development for sale was acquired
through the acquisition of 60% interest in Best Smooth during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

The properties under development for sale represents land use
rights for a piece of land located in Guangzhou, the PRC and
development costs incurred to date on the properties erected
on it. The development work has not yet been completed and
has been suspended for over 10 years. Upon completion of
acquisition of 60% interests in Best Smooth by the Group in
December 2009, the Group reactived the development and
commenced to negotiate with various contractors for the
design and implementation of the construction work of the

properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group further
acquired the remaining 40% interest in Best Smooth and 3%
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Best Smooth.
The Group's interest in Best Smooth and its subsidiaries was

increased to 100% thereafter.

Annual Report 2013/2014 § 3R
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Properties Under Development for
Sale (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered
into a framework agreement with an independent third
party, Prosperous Global Development Limited (“Prosperous
Global”), to dispose of 49% equity interest in China Good,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Best Smooth which
holds the properties under development for sale in the
PRC, at the consideration of RMB622,383,080 (equivalent
to approximately HK$746,860,000). In June, September,
October 2011 and February 2012, the parties to the
framework agreement further entered into the supplemental
agreements. A total of RMB523,302,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$607,613,000) consideration were received
and accordingly a total of 41% equity interest in proportional
to the total consideration of RMB622,383,080 (equivalent to
approximately HK$746,860,000) was transferred to Prosperous
Global in a single tranche during the year ended 31 March
2012. As the Group has not lost control over China Good,
the loss on disposal of 41% equity interests in China Good
amounting to HK$11,202,000, being the difference between
the carrying amount of HK$618,815,000 of the 41% interests
transferred and the consideration received was debited to

other reserves during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The remaining 8% interest in China Good was also transferred
to Prosperous Global upon the receipt of remaining
consideration of HK$122,115,000 during the year ended
31 March 2013. An amount of HK$63,182,000, being the
difference between the carrying amount of HK$185,297,000
of the 8% interests transferred and the consideration received
was debited to other reserves during the year ended 31 March
2013.

m kR 5

23. FERRPYE (&

REBEZ2-_FT——F=A=+—8It
FE AEESRBYE=Z IR

RERARAR ([EFRK])FT
Y-BEERGE NLEPERSE
(BlIRzEEE2EMBAR FAEK

RPARHFEERTME) 249%
Pt KE A ARM622,383,080
7T (HB & M #1746,860,000% 7T ) °
RZTE——F~A - NWA - TAK
ZE—ZF R EEBEZIY
BERE—SIAHRBZR -REE
T ——F=-A=+T—HIEFE"

BEWEAE £ AR®S523,302,000
7T (# & R #607,613,000/8 7T) 2
RE MBEYK ERBEGEBARE
AR #622,383,0807C (HERLD
746,860,000 L) 2 tL il - & #
A% BRE—IRBEETEFIRIK - B
RAEBWEmELRERERE ZZH
B R EREREMN%REZEIR
11,202,000/ 7T (BN E B 241 %4
= Z BRI {E618,815,0007% T £ 2 U
REZEZB)EREBEE-_ZE—=-F=
A=+T—BLFEREMREERI
|§/’%o

REBEE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—A8HLt
FE PEREHTIWREENER
W E T {B122,115,000/8 T 18
HETEMERE - B863,182,000
BT (BEEE 8% Em Z REE
185,297,000/8 LB WK B2 =58 )
EREE-_T—=Ff=ZA=+—HL
FEREMBEBANINR -
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23.

24.

Properties Under Development for
Sale (Continued)

The properties under development for sale were continuously
March 2014. The

management of the Group expect the project to be realised

classified as current assets as at 31
within next 12 months.

Valuation of the properties under development for sale as at
31 March 2014 has been carried out by an independent valuer
by reference to open market value and the market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions and the directors of the Company consider that

no impairment indication is noted.

Deposit for Acquisition of
Subsidiaries

The Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with total consideration of HK$850,000,000 with
an independent third party (the “Vendor”) on 25 May 2012
regarding the acquisition of certain subsidiaries (the “Target
Group”) which are engaged in hotel operations in the PRC.
A deposit of HK$250,000,000 was paid during the year
ended 31 March 2012. During the year, as the Group was not
satisfied with the due diligent review of the Target Group,
being one of the precedent conditions to the agreement, the
agreement had lapsed and deposit paid had been refunded by
the Vendor on 25 April 2013.

281
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z=F—F=H=+—HI FEF

25.Trade and Other Receivables and 25. BZ R EAMBWARBEREN
Prepayments I
2014 2013
—F-NF —=—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 226 237
Prepaid land appreciation tax (note a) TEAT L ER (A Ea) 18,521 18,318
Other receivables (net of allowance H A fE kI8
for doubtful debts) (0Br RER S ) 2,905 9,203
Deposits and prepayments (note b) e RENRIE (Hitb) 364,780 584,657
Prepayment for materials for property L ESEE S ENE RN
construction projects (note b) TEFRIB (H7aED ) - 31,732
Dividend receivables & A% B, - 17,200
Interest receivables FE U FI B - 2
386,432 661,349
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Notes:

(a)

Prepaid land appreciation tax was incurred under ordinary course
of business. Therefore, it is classified as current asset.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the full amount of
prepayment for materials for property construction projects was
refunded.

As at 31 March 2014, the balance includes approximately
HK$319,625,000 (2013: HK$499,376,000 prepayment paid
to a contractor) prepayment paid to two contractors. These
payments were made in the normal course of business of
the Group in accordance with the respective agreements and
solely for the construction of the project. These amounts
paid shall be capitalised as properties under development for
sale to the extent as certified from time to time. Included in
the balance as at 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$nil
(2013: HK$79,900,000) prepayment of consultancy fee paid
to a related party of Prosperous Global in relation to the
construction work of properties under development for sale.
The management of the Group expect the project to be realised
within next 12 months.

Kz -

(a) FENLHIBEHRNBERBBIET
EE AUDBRRBEE-

b)) RBE_FT-OF=A=1+—H1t
FE WMEZRBBYOHZANK
HE2HMERE-

R-ZEBE—ME=F=+—8 " &
HREEBNMBEABEZRELY
319,625,000 L (ZE—=F: 78
5 — B & B 2 501H499,376,000
BIL) cZEREERBHEBHEL
AEBZEBEBBEREL £
HIBEREEZB -ZFEMNFIES
BETREEZSHERNE AR
EEERYE-R_T—HNF=A
=t+—HBz&BRFT HWEET(=ZF
— =% :79,900,000/8 7T ) BFE
BRPMEZREETIRMENEF
BRI —ZREBEATZEME - NE
EEEERARRETZEARNG
ZIEH®H -
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25.Trade and Other Receivables and

Prepayments (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of one to two
months to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivable, presented based on invoice
date, net of allowance for doubtful debts at the end of each
reporting period:

5. B 5 Kk H B W I8 R TR A

IR (48)

AEEREESEFPREETE —EM
BERAAEZEER REBRHFHK
BHRUKIBEHGRERERERA
HIZ2 5 2 BRie D ATIA T

2014 2013

—E-pmEF e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHTT

0-30 days 0£30H 226 237

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess and
understand the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
its credit limits. Credit limits attributed to each customer are
reviewed regularly.

No trade receivable balance is past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss for
both years.

No allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables was
provided and no movement in the allowance was noted for

both years.
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EERMETMHETFA AEESF MG
MRIBEGEEPZEEERYEER
EERB -BURKPZEERELE
Y AR AT o

BES 5 R W HIBEHRNBRA S
ELHR - T AN 5% B R 0 7% R B 4 2 5
BB R R -

RMEEE - &R E 5 RKFHIER
FReHiRR R TEEGREZD -
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25.Trade and Other Receivables and 25. &
Prepayments (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on other

H 1 FE R

ZFA IE (IILE )

/SEYSS RN

H A 8 UK TR R AR B 2

receivables

2014 2013
—E-WF s— =

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TAETT
Balance at beginning of the year FHN#E - =
Allowance for other receivables H it i U TE B - 6,435
Amount written off as uncollectible MsE BRI E 2 58 - (6,435)
Balance at end of the year FIREERR - =

The allowance recognised on other receivable is mainly

EMBUHR AR BEEEIRESE

because of those debtors have financial difficulties. R BBARK -
26.Investments Held for Trading 26. FIEFEERE
Investments held for trading at the end of the reporting period REREAR HIEEEREBRE:
include:
2014 2013
—F-NmE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FETT
Listed securities at fair value: BAFEZ LTES
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LT RAH 89,018 41,874
— Equity securities listed elsewhere —REMM T FHz
P AN 75 %5 167 891
89,185 42,765
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27.Short-Term Loans Receivable

27. EWIEHER

2014 2013
—E—UEF el
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH T
Loans receivable e E X - 4,416

During the year, the Group advanced unsecured short-
term loan of HK$10,000,000 and HK$6,540,000 to two
independent third parties and the full amount of loan
receivables was repaid during the year. There is no outstanding
balance as at 31 March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group advanced
unsecured short-term loan of HK$9,166,000 to a subsidiary of
a listed company and an amount of HK$4,750,000 was repaid
up to 31 March 2013.

The loans receivable carry interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate
and are repayable on demand.
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F R ANEEEF10,000,0007 7T &
6,540,000 TEEFECHERTM
EBUE=F ZEEBERER
FRNEHEEE- R _ZT—NFE=A
=+—H BMEREEZEH-

RBEZZ—=F=—A=+—RH1LF
Z - K& B #149,166,0007% Jt £ &
HERERTF—MLETARZ —MK
BAR HE-_ZT—=#=fF=+—
HE&EE4,750,0008 ¢

BURERZBEZEBEMESE I
AEERER-
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28.

29.

152

Loans to Associates/Amount Due
to an Associate

(i) Loans to associates

n\l:l% é\/A agﬁx/Jﬁ{#

-
— R E N B FIR

ETHERRER

2014 2013
—E-mEF —EF—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Loans to associates BTHERRER
— Interest-free —% B - 87,838

The amounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 are
unsecured and they have been fully received during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

(i) Amount due to an associate
The amount for the year ended 31 March 2013 is

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. It has
been fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Bank Balances and Cash 29. §

The bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
held by the Group. The bank balances carries interest at 0.01%
to 0.35% per annum (2013: 0.01% to 0.35% per annum).

Hanny Holdings Lim@ HREEEGRATF

(i)
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TFEEZZF2RSEEM
VTERBE_Z-—NF=A
=t HLEFEEEKZ-

J& 5 — R B = A R R IR

HE-_T—=%=A=+—H
LtFEErZEcRAEERR
B VWEEERKEBEE -ZEZE
SHEEREE-_T—NWF=A
=t BLEFEZHEE-

THEBERRE

RITHEB LIRS REAEBAFAEZ
RERRIBBRB=EAKUAZRE
HIRIT I R - RITHERIZRFL0.01%
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30.Trade and Other Payables and 30. B 5 & E MR 7R KBS
Accruals 7 H

\

2014 2013
—E-QEF = e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Trade payables B 5 58 6 6,398
Accrued expenses R = 17,731 16,446
Interest payables JE 5 F) B 3,234 8,173
Payables for construction project BERIEE 2 BN FRIE 76,882 91,193
Other payables (note) E b S 3RIB (A7) - 99,875
Others Hit 33,648 32,965
131,501 255,050
The following is an aged analysis of REBRHER B FEARK
trade payables (based on the invoice date) ZERE& DT (REZH Hﬁ
at the end of each reporting period: ER7IDE N
Over 60 days B 860 H 6 6,398
Note: In previous years, Guangzhou lJixiang Properties Limited Het: RBEFE BNSHEEERS
(“Guangzhou Jixiang”), a subsidiary of Best Smooth, entered BRAF (TEMNEH] - BIEZHE
into presale agreements with a purchaser for the disposal of R R—BBEANZRBER
certain of the properties under development for sale. The sale #OLEETHERRTYR
transaction has not been completed since the construction of ERZEYE 1 AR &M IR 5T
the properties has not yet been completed, and accordingly, no PR L I A B R A AT A o
revenue has been recognised.
Since the property project has been suspended for a number BERZMEHEEECHESF &
of years, the purchaser has agreed with Guangzhou Jixiang 77 BN E R R A BN AU
that it would obtain a refund of deposits amounted to I & B AR AK103,863,0007T
RMB103,863,000 together with interests thereon from RAE - mIFsERBENE - RE
Guangzhou lJixiang instead of completing the purchase of the e = i
properties. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the deposits - BMRET& ARM103,863,000
received amounted to RMB103,863,000 was repaid and the rest TLEEEE SR ZMEEMK
of the payable for the interest amounted to HK$99,875,000 was 199,875,000 TERBE=F
repaid during the year ended 31 March 2014. e e Elﬂ:ifh{a}&
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31.Borrowings 31. B
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
Borrowings comprise: CESECE
Secured bank borrowings BB IRIRITER 1,280,036 785,299
Secured other borrowings BHRIPEAMERK 65,870 11,195
Unsecured other borrowings 42 45 1 LA {5 3R 65,429 81,429
1,411,335 877,923
The amounts are repayable as follows: LA FRIBZE R AR 4 R
BiR
The Group's borrowings are repayable REB 2 BRERER E
based on repayment schedules set out Fr#k v B ERER
in the loan agreements, as follows: N
— within one year ——FRQ 806,559 92,624
— more than one year, but not ——FRETBAME
exceeding two years 104,271 508,585
— more than two years, —MEREIBARF
but not more than five years 312,812 131,170
— more than five years —RAF% 156,406 109,309
The Group's borrowings that contain a RERBEPHBERER
repayable on demand clause in the BEERZAEEBRK:
loan agreements:
— within one year —— %R 6,050 5,925
- not repayable within one year from /AR AR AR BT
the end of the reporting period —FREE 25,237 30,310
1,411,335 877,923
Less: Amounts due within one year WA ARBBEEETR
shown under current liabilities —FRNE|H 2 I8 (837,846) (128,859)
573,489 749,064
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31.Borrowings (Continued)

The Group's borrowings were based on Hong Kong Prime
Rate, HIBOR and benchmark interest rate in People’s Bank of
China. The ranges of effective interest rates during the year
(which are equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s

borrowings are as follows:

31. e (&

AEBRRRBEREZENE -FE
RITARXKERPRARRITZEE
BERFAB -AEEERRFAZER
ME(HEREGOME)BEMT

2014 2013
—F-QmF R

Effective interest rate: SRS
Variable-rate borrowings FEER

2.62% toZ 12% 1.76% toZ= 12%

Included in the total amount of HK$156,272,000 loan
repayment repaid during the year ended 31 March 2013, an
amount of HK$80,096,000 was directly deducted from the
consideration for disposal of a property classified as properties
held for sale as set out in note 37.
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ReE = === H=+F—H |EF
BEEEFREREEE156,272,000
A ITH 0 80,096,000/ TE HEHRH
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32.Share Capital 32. B
Number of
shares Value
g 4= BE
HK$'000
FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.0E L TR
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and R—ZE——FmAB—AQ-
31 March 2014 T =F=A=+—HEK
—T-—mE=A=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BBETRBERAE:
Balance at 1 April 2012, RZZE—Z—_FMA—R"
31 March 2013 and —E-=ZF=A=t—HK
31 March 2014 —ZT—mFE=A=+—H
ZHEER 1,121,306,319 11,213
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33.Deferred Tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised and movements thereon during the year:

Fair value
adjustment of
intangible
assets

and property,

33. IEAEFRIE

FRAOHEAZIBEEERBARG (B

E)REE

BT

plant and
equipment
arising on Accelerated
business tax Tax
combination depreciation losses Total
EEBEH
ME£Z
BREER
NE -BER
REATE
AR MERERE REEE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR
At 1 April 2012 R-E——F@NA—H 11,782 84 (31) 11,835
Credit to profit or loss REZE AR (830) - - (830)
At 31 March 2013 R-E-—=f=A=t—H 10,952 84 (31 11,005
Credit to profit or loss niEmE AR (4,816) 41 - (4,775)
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—WE=A=+—H 6,136 125 (31) 6,230
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33.

158

Deferred Tax (Continued)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

33.

EERLIE (8

AT HIRARZ2IME & T
BELXEHEEERAGBE THE AT
RIE TS B ¥R A % 2 IR TR IR R D
#r :

2014 2013

—E-mF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FABIT
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE = (31) (31)
Deferred tax liabilities RAEFIHE E 6,261 11,036
6,230 11,005

The Group has unused tax losses of HK$783,077,000 as at
31 March 2014 (2013: HK$710,490,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such tax losses amounting to HK$196,000
(2013: HK$196,000). No deferred tax has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax loss of HK$782,881,000 (2013:
HK$710,294,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The losses can be carried forward indefinitely.
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R_ZE—NE=ZA=+—H £&E
AARREHER Sz RS AFE
518 A783,077,0008 L (— T —=
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34.Acquisition of Assets Through 34. BIBWIE—ENE AT WE

Acquisition of a Subsidiary BB

On 15 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase =< —F/AT+HH &x&
agreement to acquire 100% of the issued share capital of AIVEEHE NKREEEMES
Adrian Realty Limited, which is engaged in property investment PRABIZ100%E BHITRA KEA
and its major assets consist of numbers of car parking spaces, 6,500,000/8 JT o B b = B R A A
at a consideration of HK$6,500,000. The acquisition was ZEBROERE EXZEEBRRE
completed on 5 July 2012. ZEDREM - WEEEENR T —=

FEtARHEZREK-

This acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition GWEEEEIERBEEEREE-
of assets and liabilities. The effect of the acquisition is WHEBRZZEHMIT

summarised as follows:

HK$'000
FHAIT
Net assets acquired: FriiiE 2 EEEFE
Properties held for sale FIEHEY R 6,506
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E b FRIA (6)
Total consideration BB 6,500
Consideration satisfied by: (R A=
Cash Be 6,500
6,500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: EWEmES 2 FREME
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (6,500)
The subsidiary acquired did not contribute any significant RBE_ZT—=F=A=+—RH1F
results or cash flow to the Group for the year ended 31 March B BB AR ERAREE
2013. mRERMBEAFESRSRE
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35.Disposal of a Subsidiary 35.

160

On 1 August 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of 100% of the issued share
capital of Nice Sun Investments Limited, which is engaged in
property investment and its major assets consist of a basket
of residential and commercial properties, at a consideration
of HK$11,000,000. The disposal was completed on 1 August
2013.

The effect of the disposal is summarised as follows:

HE&E— B E QA

RZZTE—=FNA—B A&H
I B E o A &Nice Sun
Investments LimitedZ 100% & 3% 17
P& A - (X & A11,000,0007 7T ° Nice
Sun Investments Limited Z ¥ &%
ERE AFXZEERR—EZFE=E
REEME LEFHENRZZT—=
FNA—HEK-

HEFREZERMMMT

HK$'000
FABIT
Net assets disposed of: g zE&EESFE:
Properties held for sale FIEHEW R 9,977
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e W58 23
Trade and other payables 25 N E bR FOE (278)
Total @t 9,722
Total consideration received BB R E 11,000
Gain on disposal k= 1,278
Consideration satisfied by: REBZXHAR:
Cash Re 11,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: TEMELEZFHREMA
Cash consideration received BRFEEKE 11,000

The subsidiary disposed of did not contribute any significant
results or cash flows to the Group for the current year.
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36.Deposits Received in Advance

B .

38.

The amounts included the deposits of HK$190,497,000 (2013:
HK$190,259,000) received in advance in previous years by Best

Smooth for the presale of certain properties which were under

development.

Major Non-Cash Transactions 37.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, as stated in notes 22

and 31, upon disposal of a property with total consideration
of HK$160,000,000, a loan repayment of HK$80,096,000
was directly deducted from the consideration, without going

through the bank account of the Group.

 FRWET &

ZELEBEOIERATEFEMRTE
EETEREERIDEMBR TS
190,497,000 L (= — =&
190,259,000/ 7T ) °

TEFRRERF

RBE—FT—=%=A=+—A8L
FE -WFF22RITFAE RIER
R {&160,000,00078 T i E ¥ %1% -

80,096,000/ L2 EREREEEK
RENKR METEFANER ZRTT
R

Contingent Liabilities 38. HAREE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHTT
Amounts granted in respect of R—HEERARMEREE
guarantees given to banks MERITIRHEERM X T
for facilities granted to an associate & 75,000 75,000
2014 2013
—F-HmE —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Amounts utilised in respect of R—HEERARMEREE
guarantees given to banks M ERIT IR HE (R T &) A
for facilities granted to an associate ZEH 38,436 42,223
Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other contingent BREXFHEZEEN REER-Z

liabilities as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.
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S0

162

Operating Leases 39. KEMY
The Group as lessee AEBEEREHEA
2014 2013
—E-mF TN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FETT
Minimum lease payments paid under RIBEERNZH 2
operating leases: BIEMAEMRK:
Land and buildings T RIEF 5,915 5,656
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REBREAR  REE G RET A
commitments for future minimum lease payments in respect of HoKERY PREEMEZRK
rented premises under non-cancellable operating leases which HEBEMNREEZIHBNT
fall due as follows:
2014 2013
—F-NmE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT F&TT
Within one year —F R 2,326 5,031
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF
(BEEEMF) - 2,303
2,326 7,334
Leases are negotiated for lease term of three to four years MEILENFHA=-ZNF (=%
(2013: three to four years) and rentals are fixed over the terms —=F:=FENF)  mESERL
of the leases. W& E e
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40.Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting
of the Company on 17 March 2003, the Company has
terminated the share option scheme passed in 2001 and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “2003 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options to directors
and employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters and
service providers of any members of the Group who the board
of directors considers have contributed or will contribute or
can contribute to the Group. The purpose of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme is to provide participants with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Group and its shares for the benefits of the Group and its

shareholders as a whole.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and to be exercised under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time, the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the date of approval and adoption of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme.
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40.

164

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the options which may
be granted to any individual in any one year are not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share
capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be

approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. Options may
be exercised at any time from the date on which the option
is accepted to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company shares on the date of grant or the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or the nominal value of the share

of the Company.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 17 March
2013. No new share option scheme was adopted during the

year.
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41.Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
scheme for qualifying employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme subject to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per month prior to 31 May 2012 and HK$1,250 per
month from 1 June 2012, which contribution is matched by

employees.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the PRC government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$1,307,000
(2013: HK$1,266,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. As at 31 March 2014, no contribution was
due in respect of the reporting period had not been paid over

to these schemes.

41.
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42.

43.

166

Pledge of Assets 42. EEIKH
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were REREBAR AEEK T EEER
pledged by the Group to secure banking and other financing ERRITRAMBMEFE 2R
facilities:
2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Investments held for trading FIEEERE 89,018 42,591
Properties held for sale FFEHE Y 90,238 62,633
Properties under development REBRTPWE
for sale (note) (Ktaz) 3,271,183 2,316,201
3,450,439 2,421,425
Note: According to the pledge of asset agreement signed for the bank Hiat: BERROTBERBET 2EERR
borrowing, the beneficial ownership of the land including its e Tt ERERE (BEA
legal title, the right to its appurtenance and any indemnification ETEFNE  ERBEER RE LB
received from the damage of the land was pledged. i W ER 2 FE RIS E) B 1EHE I -
Transactions and Balances with A3. B ALTETZRE R

Related Parties

At the end of the reporting period, the Company provided
financial guarantee contracts to a bank amounting to
HK$75,000,000 (2013: HK$75,000,000) to secure certain

banking facilities granted to an associate.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments in
note 25, HK$nil (2013: HK$17,200,000) represents dividend
receivable from Fortune Well.

Details of balances with associates at the end of the reporting

period were set out in note 28.

M B 45 BR

RERER  NRQARGREE T —H
fENE 2B TIRITEERERITR
# 4 %8 /475,000,000 (ZE—=
% : 75,000,000 70 ) 2 A ERE
K

BisE252 8 5 M H b fE W 3R E K T8
NZEd EBET(ZE—=F:
17,200,000/% jT ) 45 E W Fortune
WellZ i% 8. °

RERREACR BRBE E N B 2 AT IB E
KT 3E28 °

Hanny Holdings Lim@ REEBARD A



43.Transactions and Balances with
Related Parties (Continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

43.

HEEBATEITZIRER
MBS ER ()

T2EIEASHM

EXLTEEEBEMKRERFEARAZ

management during the year was as follows: FrEfn T -
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
HKS$'000 HK$’000
FH&xT TAIT
Short-term benefits 52 HAfE A 18,697 9,025
Retirement benefits scheme contributions i K48 Al 5t 2t 7 71 74
18,768 9,099

The remuneration of directors and key executives of the Group
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to

the performance of individuals and market trends.
Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant

transactions with related parties during the year or significant

balances with them at the end of the reporting period.
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44.Summary Financial Information of

168

the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

44. XN BB E R E

REHEKR - BEAR M BEAR R
ZER B

2014 2013
—2-0F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TABIT
Total assets (note a) BEHEE(Hita) 3,982,919 3,979,575
Total liabilities (note b) BEBEE (WiED) (1,240,188) (1,191,934)
2,742,731 2,787,641
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR #FE

Share capital fi& A< 11,213 11,213
Reserves (note c¢) 1 (Klatc) 2,731,518 2,776,428
Total equity SRR 2,742,731 2,787,641

Notes: HiaE -

(@)  The amount includes interests in subsidiaries and amounts due
from subsidiaries of approximately HK$3,976,085,000 (2013:

HK$3,965,103,000).

(b)  The amount includes amounts due to subsidiaries of
approximately HK$1,169,033,000 (2013: HK$1,117,904,000).

(@) BZELHEBERKMBARZEZRREK
B /B A &) FIE 493,976,085,0007% JT
—ZET—=%:3,965,103,000/ 7T ) °

b) ZeBBEENWNEBEARZELYN
1,169,033,0008 L (=& — =4 :
1,117,904,000/8 7T ) °
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44.Summary Financial Information of
the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

A4, KRB BENBE (&

Wit (%)

() ()
Retained
Capital  Investment profits
Share Contributed redemption revaluation (accumulated Total
premium surplus reserve reserve losses) reserves
EAEE REEF
R4 & B EARH mE REEMRFEE (RAESR) BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT THT TR THT TR
At 1 April 2012 R-ZZBE——FNA—H 1,587,800 1,578,913 592 (1,109) (357,962) 2,808,234
Loss for the year and total FABERFRZERS
comprehensive expense for 4%
the year - - - - (9,380) (9,380)
Transfer of contributed surplus EEEHBHRZE 2 EE
to accumulated losses - (500,000) - - 500,000 -
Dividend recognised as ERRAD KRS
distribution - - - - (22,426) (22,426)
At 31 March 2013 R=ZE—-=%=A=1+—H 1,587,800 1,078,913 592 (1,109) 110,232 2,776,428
Loss for the year and total FAEBRERNZERX
comprehensive expense for BE
the year - - - - (22,484) (22,484)
Transfer of contributed surplus BRABHEBHE R E#E
to accumulated losses - (500,000) - - 500,000 -
Dividend recognised as ERABNKZRE
distribution - - - - (22,426) (22,426)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-mF=A=1+—H 1,587,800 578,913 592 (1,109) 565,322 2,731,518
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45.Event after the Reporting Period

170

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Group has the

following events after the reporting period:

(a)

On 29 September 2010, the Group entered into a
conditional agreement with ITC Properties Holdings
Group Limited (“ITCP"”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC Properties”), for
the acquisition of 50% interest in ITC Properties (China)
Limited (“ITCP (China)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of ITCP and the outstanding shareholders’ loan for a
total consideration of HK$480,000,000 (“Acquisition”).
Deposit of HK$350,000,000 was paid upon signing the
conditional agreement. Before the completion of the
Acquisition, ITCP (China) is required to acquire the entire
issued share capital of and (if any) the shareholders’
loans due by Newskill Investments Limited (“Newskill”).
Newskill is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are holding a property development project
on a land situated in the PRC. The Group held 8%
interest in Newskill, which was classified as an available-
for-sale investment.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of its 8% interest in Newskill, at a cash
consideration of HK$76,800,000. The disposal became
part of the condition for the Acquisition pursuant to the
conditional agreement on 29 September 2010 as stated
above. The disposal of 8% interest in Newskill has been
completed on 13 June 2012.

45, AFRHEARE1E

R EAFEIRIR  AKE A LT AR
®=H:

(a)

Hanny Holdings Lim@ IREEEBRAA

RZE—ZFFAAZTIAB-
AEEREEFHWEEERR
AEl([EHEE]) 2EE
= & KB A RITC Properties
Holdings Group Limited
(MITCPL)ETZ —HE K H
WE ARBITCPZZ2E W
&~ B]ITC Properties (China)
Limited ([ITCP (China)l) 2z
50%Em A REERTEER
# K 8 2480,000,000/% 7T
(TE=E]) REITEK
4 1% &% BF 2 < /350,000,000
BLZal @ RKEFIEST
BRI ITCP (China)Z8 W B
Newskill Investments Limited
(INewskill 1) 2 & 2 &7 R A
K (307 ) Newskill4 & 2 B &
B3 o NewskillB— & &2 K&
nal ANEARFEAE — BN
R E o MEERIE
B o N & B #5 B Newskill 8%
e BRSO BERAIHIEE
KE-o

RBEZZT—ZTF=A=+—
BIEFE AEEF I A K
HEEHHE LNEHEER
NewskillZ8%# & - IR & KB
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45.Event after the Reporting Period
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2013, ITCP has completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital and the shareholders’
loan due by Newskill. However, the Acquisition has not
yet been completed as at 31 March 2014 and at the date
of approval for the issuance of the consolidated financial
statements as the conditions of shareholders’ approval
have not yet met.

As at 30 May 2014, ITCP had not provided its consent to
a further extension of the long stop date, being 30 May
2014. Accordingly, the agreement had lapsed and ceased
to be of any effect immediately after 30 May 2014 and
deposit paid had been refunded by ITCP on 4 June 2014.

On 11 April 2014, Hanny Investment Group Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the acquisition agreement with ITC
Investment Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”), a company
wholly-owned by ITC Corporation Limited, the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Leaptop Investments Limited (“Leaptop”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor and the
unsecured and interest-free loan owing by Leaptop to
the Vendor at the consideration, being HK$575,000,000
by cash. The deposit of HK$100,000,000 has been
paid upon signing of the acquisition agreement on 11
April 2014. Details of the transactions are disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 19 March 2014,
23 April 2014 and 9 May 2014.

A5. R¥RIIREIE (&)

(a)

(b)
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46.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 46. ZEMB Q& 2515

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March RZE—NOE=A=+—HRZ=ZZE
2014 and 31 March 2013 are as follows: —=F=A=+—H ARQRAIKEE
MEARZFBENT:
Issued and
Place of fully paid share
incorporation/ Class of capital/ Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary registration shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company Principal activities
BRORBERE/ ENGE2 P ENGE2 1
WEAREE EMRL/BREE BERGER EfEx FEEERLA REELA TEEH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —Z-=f ZZ-QF —B-=f

Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
RS mE  EE Rl RS mE R Rtk

Hanny Group Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,100,000,200 - 100% - 100% - 100% - 100% Investment holding
HESEERERAA &k EaR 1,100,000,200% & RERR
5% non-voting HK$6,000,000
deferred shares 6,000,000 7T
(note a)
5% ERZEEL
R (Hita)
LWEEATABKEERA PRC Ordinary RMB76,980,000 - 59.75% - 59.75% - 59.75% - 59.75% Water supply
(note b) HE LS AR #76,980,00070 business
LREBTABKBERAR k%%
(H#b)
Best Smooth BVI Ordinary Us§100 - 100% - 100% - 100% - 100% Investment holding
BIE RBRTES Eak 100%7T REER
Guangzhou Jixiang (notes b and ) PRC Ordinary US$17,180,000 - 51% - 51% - 51% - 51% Development of
BMEH (Hatokc) 2 Zak 17,180,000% ¢ (note ¢) (note ¢) (note ¢) (notec)  properties for
(Wit (Wt (Wit (H#  sale
9 ) 19 ) RENFHNEHE
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46.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 46. ZEMB A7 2516 (#&)

(Continued)

Notes:

a. The holders of the 5% non-voting deferred shares are not
entitled to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meetings of the company. The non-voting deferred shares
practically carry no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

b. These companies are registered in the form of foreign
investment enterprises.

C. Guangzhou Jixiang is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Good.
Upon the transfer of 41% and 8% interest of China Good to
Prosperous Global during the year ended 31 March 2012 and
2013, respectively as stated in note 23, the effective interest of
the Group in Guangzhou lJixiang reduced from 100% to 59% as
at 31 March 2012 and further reduced to 51% as at 31 March
2013.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the result of
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particular of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.
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46.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

174

46. TEMB AT 2515 (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material non-

controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary

of the Group that has material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

Y

BREERFFEBREDEZIFEZENE

NI

TRIHEREERFERED 2 AE
BIEE2EWMBARFS:

ownership Proportion of
interest held by voting power held by (Loss) profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests
FERERRE FERERREEZ AMEFERESZ
WEARER AMRIRTEE £ Y BEERERLA REELH (E#8) &R Rt FERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZB-mE -“E-ZE CZE-Qf “2-=Ff ZE-@F <-2--§ CB-PF “F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Ti#n TEx Ti#n
Guangzhou Jixiang
BMEH 49% 49% 49% 49% (9,865) (3,924) 789,936 799,678
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests
BHERER 2 ERFEXR
HEAT 3,29 (1,59%) 69,660 68,790
(6,569) (5,520) 859,596 868,468

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out

below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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46.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Guangzhou Jixiang

46. TEMMB AT 218 (&)

BN E

2014 2013
—E—UEF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current assets MENEE 2,727,071 2,076,149
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,010 1,036
Current liabilities mEBE (2,666,926) (1,820,061)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (573,489) (749,064)
Equity attributable to RNAFIER ANEMRER
owners of the Company (1,302,270) (1,291,618)
Non-controlling interests JEVE R M = 789,936 799,678
Other income H U A 3,939 15
Administrative expenses TR X (24,072) (7,236)
Finance costs % ER - (2,349)
Loss for the year FREIE (20,133) (9,570)
Loss attributable to owners of KRNRIEE AR(LEE
the Company (10,268) (5,646)
Loss attributable to FEFE R HE o PR AL BT 1B
the non-controlling interests (9,865) (3,924)
Loss for the year FANEE (20,133) (9,570)
Net cash outflow from operating activities #& & %75 E £ 23 & i
T ER (500,975) (1,167,611)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from REX£BEEZES (RiH)
investing activities mAFRE (337) 6,331
Net cash inflow from financing activities BB EKELE2BEE N
HER 488,280 1,176,072
Net cash (outflow) inflow RBe ORd)RAFE (13,032) 14,792
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Financial Summary

MREE

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and AEEREBEE_T—NE=A=+—H1
liabilities of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 March T EAFESFEAEEREEHEAEZH
2014 is set out below: BHR T
(a) Results (a) ¥4
Year ended 31 March
BEZ=ZA=t+-BLFE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E—TF —T——F —LT-—-F —T-=-F ZE-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR FHT FHT THER
(restated)
(&E7))
(note)
(Ht5t)
Revenue WA 74,530 23,222 78,129 180,620 26,721
Profit (loss) for the year from REFELEXEB 2
continuing operations FRmF (FE) 200,243 96,881 (218,287)  (132,240)  (108,584)
(Loss) profit for the year from REBRIEEEEBZ
discontinued operation FR(ER) % = (4,029) 30,142 = -
Profit (loss) for the year FREH (EE) 200,243 92,852 (188,145)  (132,240)  (108,584)
Attributable to: IR ALRE:
Owners of the Company NGIE 2D 188,731 81,865  (189,994)  (126,720)  (102,015)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRE A 11,512 10,987 1,849 (5,520) (6,569)
200,243 92,852 (188,145) (132,240) (108,584)
b) Asset d liabiliti = =R
ssets and liabilities (b) EEREE
At 31 March
R=A=+-H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
- —T——f% T ZT—= -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THT FHT THT THR
Total assets BEMAE 4,290,979 4,223,012 4,098,602 4,747,554 4,989,820
Total liabilities BERE (1,660,667) (1,468,589)  (691,787) (1,352,299) (1,756,501)
2,630,312 2,754,423 3,406,815 3,395,255 3,233,319
Equity attributable to ATALREEER
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE? DN 2,475,361 2,634,154 2,709,242 2,526,787 2,373,723
Non-controlling interests RS 154,951 120,269 697,573 868,468 859,596
2,630,312 2,754,423 3,406,815 3,395,255 3,233,319
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered Hlit: REBE-_TE——F=A=+—
into agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Shine BEFEARN AEBFNHE
Brilliant Limited and Widecheer Limited (“Disposal Group”), H & Shine Brilliant Limited &
which carried out all of the Group’s sand mining operations. Widecheer Limited ([ & &
The completion of the disposal caused the Group lost control | REAEEMERYER)
over the Disposal Group. Thereafter the Group discontinued 2 100% % # o 1) & = 5 SE A B 5L
in the sand mining operations and presented as discontinued AREBLEH HEEE 2 HIHE -
operations. The comparative figures in the consolidated Eg AEEDRIEEERDE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for % WIS B 25 AERIEK
the year ended 31 March 2011 have been restated accordingly. SR ABEREEMEEWE
KABE_Z——F=F=+—
BIEFEZHEBBFEHREES -
Hanny Holdings Limited J R & @AR A &
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